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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q
QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT
OF 1934

For the quarterly period ended September 30, 2014

TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT
OF 1934

For the transition period from to

Commission file number 000-51222

DEXCOM, INC.

(Exact name of Registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware 33-0857544

(State or Other Jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer
Incorporation or Organization) Identification No.)
6340 Sequence Drive

San Diego, California 92121

(Address of Principal Executive Offices) (Zip Code)

Registrant’s Telephone Number, including area code: (858) 200-0200

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was
required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes y No ~
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate website, if any,
every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of
this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and
post such files). Yes y No ~

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer or
a smaller reporting company. See the definitions of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer,” and “smaller reporting
company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act (Check one):

Large Accelerated Filer y Accelerated Filer 0

Non-Accelerated Filer o (Do not check if a smaller reporting company) Smaller Reporting Company 0
Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange
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DexCom, Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(In millions—except par value data)

Assets

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Short-term marketable securities, available-for-sale
Accounts receivable, net

Inventory

Prepaid and other current assets

Total current assets

Property and equipment, net

Restricted cash

Intangible assets, net

Goodwill

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities and stockholders’ equity
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Accrued payroll and related expenses
Current portion of long-term debt
Current portion of deferred revenue
Total current liabilities

Other liabilities

Long-term debt, net of current portion
Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies (Note 4)
Stockholders’ equity:

Preferred stock, $0.001 par value, 5.0 shares authorized; no shares issued and
outstanding at September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively
Common stock, $0.001 par value, 100.0 authorized; 76.7 and 76.4 issued and
outstanding, respectively, at September 30, 2014; and 72.8 and 72.5 shares
issued and outstanding, respectively, at December 31, 2013

Additional paid-in capital

Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Accumulated deficit

Total stockholders’ equity

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity
See accompanying notes

3

September 30,
2014
(Unaudited)

$63.2
11.7
314
14.3
2.8
123.4
28.0
1.0
3.1
32
0.7
$159.4

$20.9
16.8
23
0.6
40.6
0.9
29
44.4

0.1

614.1
0.1
(499.1
115.0
$159.4

December 31,
2013

$43.2
11.4
26.1
9.0
34
93.1
20.7
1.0
3.6
32
0.9
$122.5

$14.1
15.1
2.2
0.7
32.1
1.7
4.6
384

0.1

559.5
0.1
(4754
84.1
$122.5
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DexCom, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Operations
(In millions—except per share data)
(Unaudited)

Product revenue

Development grant and other revenue

Total revenue

Product cost of sales

Development and other cost of sales

Total cost of sales

Gross profit

Operating expenses

Research and development

Selling, general and administrative

Total operating expenses

Operating loss

Interest expense

Net loss

Basic net loss per share

Shares used to compute basic net loss per share
Diluted net loss per share

Shares used to compute diluted net loss per share
See accompanying notes

4

Three Months Ended
September 30,

2014 2013
$67.9 $42.5
1.1 04
69.0 42.9
21.8 14.8
— 0.5
21.8 15.3
47.2 27.6
18.5 11.8
33.7 21.6
52.2 334
(5.0 ) (5.8
(0.2 ) (0.2
$(5.2 ) $(6.0
$(0.07 ) $(0.08
75.8 71.4
$(0.08 ) $(0.08
76.1 71.4

Nine Months Ended
September 30,

2014 2013
$172.8 $105.8
2.1 2.5
174.9 108.3
57.4 40.9
0.6 1.4
58.0 42.3
116.9 66.0
47.8 32.2
92.2 60.4
140.0 92.6
(23.1 ) (26.6
(0.6 ) (0.6
$(23.7 ) $(27.2
$(0.32 ) $(0.38
74.7 70.7
$(0.33 ) $(0.38
75.0 70.7

R N e
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DexCom, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Loss
(In millions)

(Unaudited)

Net loss

Unrealized gain (loss) on short-term available-for-sale
marketable securities

Foreign currency translation gain (loss)
Comprehensive loss

See accompanying notes

5

Three Months Ended
September 30,

2014 2013
$(5.2 ) $(6.0
0.1 —
$(5.1 ) $(6.0

Nine Months Ended
September 30,
2014 2013

) $(23.7 ) $(27.2

) $(23.7 ) $(27.2
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DexCom, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(In millions)

(Unaudited)

Operating activities
Net loss

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to cash provided by (used in) in operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization

Share-based compensation

Accretion and amortization related to marketable securities, net
Amortization of debt issuance costs

Change in fair value of contingent consideration
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable, net

Inventory

Prepaid and other assets

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Accrued payroll and related expenses

Deferred revenue

Deferred rent and other liabilities

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities
Investing activities

Purchase of available-for-sale marketable securities
Proceeds from the maturity of available-for-sale marketable securities
Purchase of property and equipment

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities
Financing activities

Net proceeds from issuance of common stock
Repayment of long-term debt

Net cash provided by financing activities

Increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period

See accompanying notes

6

Nine Months Ended
September 30,

2014 2013
$(23.7 ) $(27.2
6.0 5.1
35.7 18.0
0.1 0.3
0.3 0.3
0.7 ) 2.0
(5.3 ) (2.0
(5.3 ) (2.5
0.7 (0.5
6.1 2.9
1.7 3.1
0.1 ) (14
0.3 ) (0.1
15.2 2.0
(10.3 ) (124
9.8 38.4
(11.6 ) (5.6
(12.1 ) 204
18.5 6.9
(1.6 ) —
16.9 6.9
20.0 25.3
43.2 8.1
$63.2 $33.4

)
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DexCom, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Unaudited)

1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization and Business

DexCom, Inc. is a medical device company focused on the design, development and commercialization of continuous
glucose monitoring (“CGM”) systems for ambulatory use by people with diabetes and by healthcare providers in the
hospital for the treatment of people with and without diabetes. Unless the context requires otherwise, the terms “we,” “us,
“our,” the “company,” or “DexCom” refer to DexCom, Inc. and its subsidiaries.

Basis of Presentation

We have incurred operating losses since our inception and have an accumulated deficit of $499.1 million at
September 30, 2014. As of September 30, 2014, we had available cash, cash equivalents and short-term marketable
securities totaling $74.9 million, excluding $1.0 million of restricted cash, and working capital of $82.8 million. Our
ability to transition to, and maintain, profitable operations is dependent upon achieving a level of revenues adequate to
support our cost structure. If events or circumstances occur such that we do not meet our operating plan as expected,
we may be required to reduce planned increases in compensation related expenses or other operating expenses which
could have an adverse impact on our ability to achieve our intended business objectives. We believe our working
capital resources will be sufficient to fund our operations through at least September 30, 2015.

We have prepared the accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”) for interim financial information and with
the instructions to Form 10-Q and Article 10 of Regulation S-X. Accordingly, they do not include all of the
information and disclosures required by U.S. GAAP for complete financial statements. In the opinion of management,
all adjustments, which include only normal recurring adjustments considered necessary for a fair presentation (except
for the changes in estimates described below), have been included. Operating results for the three and nine months
ended September 30, 2014 are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the year ending
December 31, 2014. These unaudited consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the audited
financial statements and related notes thereto for the year ended December 31, 2013 included in the Annual Report on
Form 10-K filed by us with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 20, 2014.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of DexCom and our wholly owned subsidiaries, DexCom
AB and SweetSpot Diabetes Care, Inc. (“SweetSpot”). All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation.

Segment Reporting

An operating segment is identified as a component of a business that has discrete financial information available, and
one for which the chief operating decision maker must decide the level of resource allocation. In addition, the
guidance for segment reporting indicates certain quantitative thresholds. The operations of SweetSpot, our subsidiary,
does not meet the definition of an operating segment and are currently not material, but may become material in the
future. We currently consider our operations to be, and manage our business as, one operating segment.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires us to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual
results could differ from these estimates. Significant estimates include excess or obsolete inventories, valuation of
inventory, warranty accruals, employee bonus, clinical trial expenses, allowance for bad debt, accounting for the
SweetSpot acquisition including contingent consideration, and share-based compensation expense.

Share-Based Compensation

We recorded $13.8 million and $35.7 million in share-based compensation expense during the three and nine months
ended September 30, 2014, respectively, compared to $6.6 million and $18.0 million, respectively, during the three
and nine months ended September 30, 2013. At September 30, 2014, unrecognized estimated compensation costs
related to unvested
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stock options and restricted stock units totaled $116.6 million and are expected to be recognized through 2018. We
issued performance restricted stock units (the “Performance Awards”) in connection with our acquisition of SweetSpot
in March 2012. The performance targets for these Performance Awards are tied to earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortization (“EBITDA”) for fiscal years 2013 and 2014. We recognize expense for the Performance
Awards when it is probable that the EBITDA targets will be met. The performance target for fiscal 2013 EBITDA was
not achieved. At September 30, 2014, we had $2.2 million of unrecognized share-based compensation expense related
to the Performance Awards for the fiscal 2014 performance target. We use the grant date fair value of our common
stock for valuing restricted stock unit awards. Our determination of the fair value of share-based payment awards on
the date of grant is affected by our stock price. Compensation costs will be adjusted for future changes in estimated
forfeitures.

Revenue Recognition

We sell our durable systems and disposable units through a direct sales force in the United States and through
distribution arrangements in the United States, Canada, Australia, New Zealand, and in portions of Europe, Asia, the
Middle East and Latin America. Components are individually priced and can be purchased separately or together. We
receive payment directly from customers who use our products, as well as from distributors, organizations and
third-party payors. Our durable system includes a reusable transmitter, a receiver, a power cord, data management
software and a USB cable. Disposable sensors for use with the durable system are sold separately in packages of four.
The initial durable system price is generally not dependent upon the purchase of any amount of disposable sensors.
Revenue is recognized when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery has occurred or services have
been rendered, the price is fixed or determinable, and collectability is reasonably assured. Revenue on product sales is
generally recognized upon shipment, which is when title and the risk of loss have been transferred to the customer and
there are no other post shipment obligations. With respect to customers who directly pay for products, the products are
generally paid for at the time of shipment using a customer’s credit card and do not include customer acceptance
provisions. We recognize revenue from contracted insurance payors based on the contracted rate. For non-contracted
insurance payors, we obtain prior authorization from the payor and recognize revenue based on the estimated
collectible amount and historical experience. We also receive a prescription or statement of medical necessity and, for
insurance reimbursement customers, an assignment of benefits prior to shipment.

We provide a “30-day money back guarantee” program whereby customers who purchase a durable system and a
package of four disposable sensors may return the durable system for any reason within thirty days of purchase and
receive a full refund of the purchase price of the durable system. We accrue for estimated returns, refunds and rebates
by reducing revenues and establishing a liability account at the time of shipment based on historical experience.
Returns have historically been immaterial.

We have entered into distribution agreements with Byram Healthcare and their subsidiaries ("Byram"), RGH
Enterprises, Inc. (“Edgepark™) and other distributors that allow the distributors to sell our durable systems and
disposable units. We have contracts with certain distributors who stock our products (“‘Stocking Distributors”), whereby
the distributors fulfill orders for our product from their inventory. We also have contracts with certain distributors that
do not stock our products, but rather products are shipped directly to the customer by us on behalf of our distributor
(“Drop-Ship Distributors”). Revenue is recognized based on contracted prices and invoices are either paid by check
following the issuance of a purchase order or letter of credit, or they are paid by wire at the time of placing the order.
Terms of distributor orders are generally Freight on Board (“FOB”) shipping point (Free Carrier (“FCA”) shipping point
for international orders). Distributors do not have rights of return per their distribution agreement outside of our
standard warranty. The distributors typically have a limited time frame to notify us of any missing, damaged,
defective or non-conforming products. For any such products, we shall either, at our option, replace the portion of
defective or non-conforming product at no additional cost to the distributor or cancel the order and refund any portion
of the price paid to us at that time for the sale in question.

We have collaborative license and development arrangements with strategic partners for the development and
commercialization of products utilizing our technologies. The terms of these agreements typically include the license
of certain intellectual property rights and the provision of multiple deliverables by us (for example, research and
development services, product prototypes and products for use in clinical trials) in exchange for consideration to us of

9
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some combination of non-refundable license fees, funding of research and development activities, payments based
upon achievement of development milestones and royalties in the form of a designated percentage of product sales or
profits. With the exception of royalties, these types of consideration are classified as development grant and other
revenue in our consolidated statements of operations and are generally recognized over the service period except for
substantive milestone payments, which are generally recognized when the milestone is achieved. In determining
whether each milestone is substantive, we considered whether the consideration earned by achieving the milestone
should (i) be commensurate with either (a) our performance to achieve the milestone or (b) the enhancement of value
of the item delivered as a result of a specific outcome resulting from our performance to achieve

8
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the milestone, (ii) relate solely to past performance and (iii) be reasonable relative to all deliverables and payment
terms in the arrangement. We recognize royalties in the period in which we obtain the royalty report, which is
necessary to determine the amount of royalties we are entitled to receive.

Non-refundable license fees are recognized as revenue when we have a contractual right to receive such payment, the
contract price is fixed or determinable, the collection of the resulting receivable is reasonably assured and we have no
further performance obligations under the license agreement. Multiple element arrangements, such as license,
development and other multiple element service arrangements are analyzed to determine how the arrangement
consideration should be allocated among the separate units of accounting, or whether they must be accounted for as a
single unit of accounting.

For transactions containing multiple element arrangements, we consider deliverables as separate units of accounting
and recognize deliverables as revenue upon delivery only if (i) the deliverable has standalone value and (ii) if the
arrangement includes a general right of return relative to the delivered item(s), delivery or performance of the
undelivered item(s) is probable and substantially controlled by us. We allocate consideration to the separate units of
accounting using the relative selling price method, in which allocation of consideration is based on vendor-specific
objective evidence (“VSOE”) if available, third-party evidence (“TPE”), or if VSOE and TPE are not available,
management’s best estimate of a standalone selling price for elements.

We use judgment in estimating the value allocable to the deliverables in an agreement based on our estimate of the
fair value or relative selling price attributable to the related deliverables and the consideration from such an agreement
is typically recognized as product revenue or development grant and other revenue. For arrangements that are
accounted for as a single unit of accounting, total payments under the arrangement are recognized as revenue on a
straight-line basis over the period we expect to complete our performance obligations. We review the estimated period
of our performance obligations on a periodic basis and update the recognition period as appropriate. The cumulative
amount of revenue earned is limited to the cumulative amount of payments we are entitled to as of the period ending
date.

If we cannot reasonably estimate when our performance obligation either ceases or becomes inconsequential, then
revenue is deferred until we can reasonably estimate when the performance obligation ceases or becomes
inconsequential. Revenue is then recognized over the remaining estimated period of performance. Deferred revenue
amounts are classified as current liabilities to the extent that revenue is expected to be recognized within one year.
Significant management judgment is required in determining the level of effort required under an arrangement and the
period over which we are expected to complete our performance obligations under an arrangement.

Warranty Accrual

Estimated warranty costs associated with a product are recorded at the time of shipment. We estimate future warranty
costs by analyzing historical warranty experience for the timing and amount of returned product, and these estimates
are evaluated on at least a quarterly basis to determine the continued appropriateness of such assumptions.

Foreign Currency

The financial statements of our non-U.S. subsidiary, whose functional currency is the Swedish Krona, are translated
into U.S. dollars for financial reporting purposes. Assets and liabilities are translated at period-end exchange rates, and
revenue and expense transactions are translated at average exchange rates for the period. Cumulative translation
adjustments are recognized as part of comprehensive income and are included in accumulated other comprehensive
income in the consolidated balance sheet. Gains and losses on transactions denominated in other than the functional
currency are reflected in operations. To date the results of operations of this subsidiary and related translation
adjustments have not been material in our consolidated results.

Comprehensive Loss

We report all components of comprehensive loss, including net loss, in the consolidated financial statements in the
period in which they are recognized. Comprehensive loss is defined as the change in equity during a period from
transactions and other events and circumstances from non-owner sources. Net loss and other comprehensive loss,
including unrealized gains and losses on marketable securities and foreign currency translation adjustments, are
reported, net of their related tax effect, to arrive at comprehensive loss.

11
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Inventory

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost or market value on a part-by-part basis that approximates first in, first out. We
make adjustments to reduce the cost of inventory to its net realizable value, if required, for estimated excess, obsolete
and potential scrapped inventories. Factors influencing these adjustments include inventories on hand and on order
compared to estimated future usage and sales for existing and new products, as well as judgments regarding quality
control testing data, and assumptions about the likelihood of scrap and obsolescence. Once written down the
adjustments are considered permanent and are not reversed until the related inventory is sold or disposed.

Short-Term Marketable Securities

We have classified our short-term marketable securities as “available-for-sale” and carry them at fair value with
unrealized gains and losses, if any, reported as a separate component of stockholders' equity and included in
comprehensive loss. Realized gains and losses are calculated using the specific identification method and recorded as
interest income. We do not intend to sell the investments and it is not more likely than not that we will be required to
sell the investments before recovery of their amortized cost bases, which may be maturity.

Fair Value Measurements

The fair value hierarchy described by the authoritative guidance for fair value measurements is based on three levels
of inputs, of which the first two are considered observable and the last unobservable, that may be used to measure fair
value and include the following:

Level 1—Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2—Inputs other than Level 1 that are observable, either directly or indirectly, such as quoted prices for similar
assets or liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are observable or can be
corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities.

Level 3—Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to the fair value
of the assets or liabilities.

We base the fair value of our Level 1 financial instruments that are in active markets using quoted market prices for
identical instruments. Our Level 1 financial instruments include certificates of deposit.

We obtain the fair value of our Level 2 financial instruments, which are not in active markets, from a primary
professional pricing source using quoted market prices for identical or comparable instruments, rather than direct
observations of quoted prices in active markets. Fair value obtained from this professional pricing source can also be
based on pricing models whereby all significant observable inputs, including maturity dates, issue dates, settlement
date, benchmark yields, reported trades, broker-dealer quotes, issue spreads, benchmark securities, bids, offers or
other market related data, are observable or can be derived from, or corroborated by, observable market data for
substantially the full term of the asset.

We validate the quoted market prices provided by our primary pricing service by comparing the fair values of our
Level 2 marketable securities portfolio balance provided by our primary pricing service against the fair values of our
Level 2 marketable securities portfolio balance provided by our investment managers.

Certain contingent consideration liabilities are classified within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy because they use
unobservable inputs. For those liabilities, fair value is determined using a probability-weighted discounted cash flow
model, the significant inputs, which include the probability and expected timing of achievement and the discount rate,
are not observable in the market.

10
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The following table represents our fair value hierarchy for our financial assets (cash equivalents, marketable securities
and restricted cash) and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of September 30, 2014 (in millions):

Fair Value Measurements Using

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Cash equivalents $— $24.5 $— $24.5
Marketable securities, available for sale
U.S. government agencies — 8.8 — 8.8
Corporate debt — 2.0 — 2.0
Commercial paper — 0.9 — 0.9
Total marketable securities, available for sale $— $11.7 $— $11.7
Restricted cash $1.0 $— $— $1.0
Contingent consideration liability $— $— $3.5 $3.5

The following table represents our fair value hierarchy for our financial assets (cash equivalents, marketable securities
and restricted cash) and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of December 31, 2013 (in millions):

Fair Value Measurements Using

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Cash equivalents $— $28.7 $— $28.7
Marketable securities, available for sale
U.S. government agencies — 8.9 — 8.9
Corporate debt — 2.5 — 2.5
Total marketable securities, available for sale $— $11.4 $— $11.4
Restricted cash $1.0 $— $— $1.0
Contingent consideration liability $— $— $4.2 $4.2

Additional Disclosures Regarding Fair Value Measurements
The book values of cash equivalents, short-term marketable securities, accounts receivable and accounts payable
approximate their respective fair values due to the short-term nature of these instruments.

Non-Financial Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Nonrecurring Basis

Our non-financial assets and liabilities (e.g., goodwill, intangible assets, property and equipment and nonfinancial
assets and liabilities initially measured at fair value in a business combination) are re-measured at fair value
subsequent to initial recognition only when they are deemed to be other-than-temporarily impaired. There were no
non-financial assets and liabilities deemed to be other-than-temporarily impaired and measured at fair value on a
nonrecurring basis for the periods presented.

Contingent Consideration Liability

On February 21, 2012, we entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the “Merger Agreement”) to acquire
SweetSpot. The merger was consummated on March 6, 2012 (the “Closing”). In connection with the acquisition of
SweetSpot, at the closing of the acquisition, we agreed to issue up to an additional 357,176 shares of our common
stock to the security holders of SweetSpot (the “SweetSpot Security-holders”) upon the achievement of certain platform
development milestones and regulatory approval milestones (the “Milestone Payments™), which are classified as
contingent consideration. The fair value of the contingent consideration at the closing of $2.2 million was determined
using a probability-weighted discounted cash flow model, the significant inputs of which are not observable in the
market. The key assumptions in applying this approach are the interest rate and the estimated probabilities and timing
assigned to the Milestone Payments being achieved. During 2012, approximately $1.1 million related to the
contingent consideration was earned and paid through the issuance of 89,296 shares of our common stock. We did not
issue any shares of common stock for Milestone Payments in 2013 or through September 30, 2014. On November 3,
2014, we entered into a Settlement Agreement with the stockholders’ agent for the SweetSpot Security-holders (the

14
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“SweetSpot Settlement Agreement), whereby we agreed to, among other things, issue 89,300 shares of our common
stock in exchange for the cancellation of the remaining Milestone Payments. For details on the SweetSpot Settlement

Agreement please see Note 6 "Subsequent Events."
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We reassess the fair value of our contingent consideration liability on a quarterly basis. Changes in fair value are
recorded in the consolidated statements of operations as research and development expense since the milestones are
related to development activities.

The following table sets forth the change in the estimated fair value for our liabilities measured on a recurring basis
using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) (in millions):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

September 30, September 30,

2014 2013 2014 2013
Fair value measurement at the beginning of period $4.4 $2.7 $4.2 $1.7
Changes in fair value measurement included in operating expenses (0.9 ) 1.0 0.7 ) 2.0
Fair value measurement at end of period $3.5 $3.7 $3.5 $3.7

The changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration for the SweetSpot acquisition for the periods presented
resulted from updates to assumed probability of achievement of milestones and adjustments to the discount periods.
Impairment of Goodwill and Intangible Assets

We test goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives for impairment on an annual basis. Also, between annual
tests we test for impairment if events and circumstances indicate it is more likely than not that the fair value is less
than the carrying value. Events that would indicate impairment and trigger an interim impairment assessment include,
but are not limited to, current economic and market conditions, including a decline in market capitalization, a
significant adverse change in legal factors, business climate or operational performance of the business and an adverse
action or assessment by a regulator.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is stated at cost and depreciated over the estimated useful lives of the assets, generally three
years for computer equipment, four years for machinery and equipment, and five years for furniture and fixtures, using
the straight-line method. Leasehold improvements are stated at cost and amortized over the shorter of the estimated
useful lives of the assets or the remaining lease term.

Recent Accounting Guidance

In July 2013, the FASB issued authoritative guidance for Presentation of an Unrecognized Tax Benefit When a Net
Operating Loss Carryforward, a Similar Tax Loss, or a Tax Credit Carryforward Exists, which provides explicit
guidance on the financial statement presentation of an unrecognized tax benefit when a net operating loss
carryforward, a similar tax loss, or a tax credit carryforward exists. The guidance is effective prospectively for fiscal
years, and interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2013, with early adoption permitted. We
adopted this guidance on January 1, 2014, and the adoption of this guidance did not have a material impact on our
consolidated financial statements or related financial statement disclosures.

In May 2014, the FASB issued authoritative guidance for Revenue from Contracts with Customers, to supersede
nearly all existing revenue recognition guidance under U.S. GAAP. The core principle of the guidance is to recognize
revenues when promised goods or services are transferred to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration
that is expected to be received for those goods or services. The guidance defines a five step process to achieve this
core principle and it is possible when the five step process is applied, more judgment and estimates may be required
within the revenue recognition process than required under existing U.S. GAAP including identifying performance
obligations in the contract, estimating the amount of variable consideration to include in the transaction price and
allocating the transaction price to each separate performance obligation. The updated standard permits the use of
either the retrospective or cumulative effect transition method and is effective for us in our first quarter of fiscal 2017.
Early adoption is not permitted. We have not yet selected a transition method and we are currently evaluating the
effect that the updated standard will have on our consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

12

16



Edgar Filing: DEXCOM INC - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents

2. Net Loss Per Common Share

Basic net loss per share attributable to common stockholders is calculated by dividing the net loss attributable to
common stockholders by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding for the period, without
consideration for common stock equivalents. Diluted net loss per share attributable to common stockholders is
computed by dividing the net loss attributable to common stockholders by the weighted-average number of common
share equivalents outstanding for the period determined using the treasury-stock method. For purposes of this
calculation, options, unvested restricted stock units settleable in shares of common stock and contingently issuable
shares related to contingent consideration for the SweetSpot acquisition are considered to be common stock
equivalents and are only included in the calculation of diluted net loss per share when their effect is dilutive. The
dilutive effect of the contingent consideration settleable in stock is calculated as if the contingently issuable shares
were outstanding as of the beginning of the period.

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted net loss per share (in millions, except per share
data):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2014 2013 2014 2013
Numerator for basic and diluted net loss per share:
Net loss for basic $(5.2 ) $(6.0 ) $(23.7 ) $(27.2
Impact of income related to mark-to-market on contingent 0.9 )y — 0.7 )y —
consideration obligation settleable in shares ' '
Net loss for diluted $(6.1 ) $(6.0 ) $(244 ) $(272

Denominator for basic and diluted net loss per share:
Weighted average common shares outstanding for basic 75.8 71.4 74.7 70.7
Dilutive potential common stock outstanding:

Contingently issuable shares related to contingent consideration

obligation settleable in shares 0.3 o 0.3 o
Weighted average common shares outstanding for diluted 76.1 71.4 75.0 70.7
Basic net loss per share $(0.07 ) $0.08 ) $0.32 ) $(0.38
Diluted net loss per share $(0.08 ) $(0.08 ) $0.33 ) $(0.38

Historical outstanding anti-dilutive securities not included in diluted net loss per share attributable to common
stockholders calculation (in millions):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

September 30, September 30,

2014 2013 2014 2013
Options outstanding to purchase common stock 3.8 6.6 3.8 6.6
Unvested restricted stock units 4.3 3.7 4.3 3.7
Total 8.1 10.3 8.1 10.3
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3. Financial Statement Details (in millions)
Short Term Marketable Securities, Available for Sale

Short term marketable securities, consisting solely of debt securities with contractual maturities of less than one year

were as follows:

September 30, 2014

Amortized Gross . Gross ‘ Estimated
Cost Unrealized Unrealized Market
Gains Losses Value
U.S. government agencies $8.8 $— $— $8.8
Corporate debt 2.0 — — 2.0
Commercial paper 0.9 — — 0.9
Total $11.7 $— $— $11.7
December 31, 2013
Amortized Gross . Gross ‘ Estimated
Cost Unrealized Unrealized Market
Gains Losses Value
U.S. government agencies $8.9 $— $— $8.9
Corporate debt 2.5 — — 2.5
Total $11.4 $— $— $11.4
Inventory

September 30, 2014 December 31, 2013

Raw materials $6.2 $4.8
Work-in-process 1.2 0.3
Finished goods 6.9 39
Total $14.3 $9.0

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities

September 30, 2014 December 31, 2013

Accounts payable trade $7.9 $4.2
Accrued tax, audit, and legal fees 1.5 1.2
Clinical trials 0.5 0.3
Accrued other including warranty 7.5 4.8
Acquisition-related liabilities 35 3.6
Total $20.9 $14.1
14
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Accrued Warranty

Warranty costs are reflected in the consolidated statements of operations as product cost of sales. A reconciliation of
our accrued warranty costs for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 were as follows:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2014 2013 2014 2013
Beginning balance $0.9 $0.3 $0.9 $0.3
Charges to costs and expenses 1.6 2.1 3.8 3.5
Costs incurred (1.3 ) (1.1 ) (3.5 ) (2.5 )
Ending balance $1.2 $1.3 $1.2 $1.3

4. Commitments and Contingencies

Long-Term Debt

In November 2012, we entered into a loan and security agreement (the “Loan Agreement”) that provides for (i) a $15.0
million revolving line of credit and (ii) a total term loan of up to $20.0 million (the "Term Loan"), in both cases, to be
used for general corporate purposes. The borrowings under the Loan Agreement are collateralized by a first priority
security interest in substantially all of our assets with a negative pledge on our intellectual property.

The revolving line of credit is an interest-only financing that bears an interest rate equal to the prime rate plus 0.5%
and requires repayment of principal at the maturity date of November 2015. Under the revolving line of credit,
available funds, which were up to $15.0 million as of September 30, 2014 can be drawn at any time, and repaid funds
can be redrawn. No amounts have been drawn against the revolving line of credit.

Per the Loan Agreement, $7.0 million was advanced under the Term Loan at the funding date in November 2012 and
up to $13.0 million in additional funds was available upon our request from June 1, 2013 to September 30, 2013 (the
"Draw Period"). In August 2013, the Loan Agreement was amended to change the Draw Period for the additional
funds under the Term Loan to January 1, 2014 through March 31, 2014, at which time the Draw Period expired
unused. The Term Loan bears a fixed interest rate equal to the three-year treasury rate at the time of advance plus
6.94% and requires payment of interest only for the first year and amortized payments of interest and principal
thereafter through the maturity date of November 2016.

The aggregate debt issuance costs and fees incurred with respect to the issuance of the Loan Agreement were $1.1
million. These costs have been capitalized as debt issuance costs on our consolidated balance sheet as other assets.
Fees related to the revolving line of credit are being amortized through the maturity date of November 2015. Issuance
costs and fees related to the term loan are being amortized through the maturity date of November 2016 using the
effective interest method. As of September 30, 2014, the remaining unamortized issuance costs and fees totaled $0.4
million. Principal repayment obligations under the Loan Agreement as of September 30, 2014 were as follows (in
millions):

Fiscal Year Ending

Remainder of 2014 $0.6
2015 2.3
2016 2.3
Total $5.2
Leases

In April 2006, we entered into an office lease agreement for facilities located in San Diego, California. In August

2010, we entered into a First Amendment to Office Lease (the “First Lease Amendment”) with respect to facilities in the
buildings at 6340 Sequence Drive and 6310 Sequence Drive, each in San Diego, California, and in October 2014, we
entered into a Second Amendment to Office Lease (the “Second Lease Amendment”), which added the building at 6290
Sequence Drive to our lease. The Second Lease Amendment is described in further detail in Note 6 “Subsequent
Events”. The amended lease term extends through March 2022 and we have an option to renew the lease upon the
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expiration of the initial term for two additional five -year terms. These facility leases have annual rental increases
ranging from approximately 2.5% to 4.0%. The difference between the straight-line expense over the term of the lease

and actual amounts paid are recorded as deferred rent. In September 2008, our subsidiary in Sweden entered into a
three-year lease for a small shared office space, which was renewed
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for a three-year term and has a quarterly adjustment clause for rent to increase or decrease in proportion to changes in
consumer prices. In July 2012, our subsidiary SweetSpot entered into a five-year lease for a small office space in a
multi-tenant commercial building in Portland, Oregon. Rental obligations, excluding real estate taxes, operating costs,
and tenant improvement allowances, under all lease agreements as of September 30, 2014 were as follows (in
millions):

Fiscal Year Ending

Remainder of 2014 $0.7
2015 2.9
2016 2.6
Total $6.2

Total rent expense for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014 was $0.8 million and $2.3 million,
respectively, compared to $0.7 million and $2.2 million, respectively, for the same periods of 2013.

Litigation

Commencing on August 11, 2005, Abbott Diabetes Care, Inc. (“Abbott”) instituted various patent infringement
proceedings against us in the United States District Court for the District of Delaware. In these proceedings Abbott
sought, among other things, a declaratory judgment that our continuous glucose monitoring systems infringe certain
patents held by Abbott.

On July 2, 2014, we entered into a Settlement and License Agreement (the “Abbott Settlement Agreement”) with Abbott
(Abbott and us together, the “settlement parties” and each, a “settlement party”). The Abbott Settlement Agreement was
entered into in full settlement of all pending patent infringement legal proceedings brought by Abbott against us. In
accordance with the Abbott Settlement Agreement, on July 7, 2014, the parties filed a joint stipulation of dismissal of
all pending legal proceedings, which was granted by the court on July 11, 2014.

The Abbott Settlement Agreement does not obligate us to pay any royalties or any other form of financial
compensation. The Abbott Settlement Agreement provides for a royalty-free, worldwide, non-exclusive,
non-sublicensable cross-license of certain patents. We receive a limited license from Abbott to the patents that Abbott
has alleged that we infringed (and other Abbott patents that claim priority to such patents). We grant to Abbott a
limited license of certain patents with an actual filing date prior to January 1, 2005 (and other of our patents that claim
priority to such patents). In addition, each settlement party agrees not to (1) sue the other settlement party for patent
infringement based on certain of their respective continuous glucose monitoring products, and (2) challenge any
patent or patent application held by the other settlement party, subject to certain limited exceptions, in each case, until
March 31, 2021. The cross-license and mutual covenant not to sue granted to each settlement party do not apply to the
type of sensor technology used by the other settlement party.

In the event of a change of control, the settlement party that is not acquired in the change of control (the
“Non-Acquired Party”) shall be paid a one-time continuation fee of $25.0 million. If the Non-Acquired Party is not paid
the continuation fee within 30 days after the effective date of such change of control, then the license granted by, and
all covenants of, the Non-Acquired Party shall expire 30 days after the effective date of the change of control, but the
license granted by, and all covenants of, the settlement party that is acquired shall survive such expiration.

From time to time, we are subject to various claims and suits arising out of the ordinary course of business, including
commercial and employment related matters. In addition, from time to time, we may bring claims or initiate lawsuits
against various third parties with respect to matters arising out of the ordinary course of our business, including
commercial and employment related matters. We do not expect that the resolution of these matters would, or will,
have a material adverse effect or material impact on our consolidated financial position.

Purchase Commitments

We are party to various purchase arrangements related to our manufacturing and development activities including
materials used in our glucose monitoring systems. As of September 30, 2014, we had purchase commitments with
vendors totaling $26.9 million due within one year. There are no material purchase commitments due beyond one
year.

5. Development and Other Agreements
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Edwards Lifesciences LLC

On November 10, 2008, we entered into a Collaboration Agreement with Edwards Lifesciences LLC (“Edwards”). The
Collaboration Agreement was amended by the parties on May 5, 2009 (as amended, the “Collaboration Agreement”).
Pursuant to the Collaboration Agreement, the parties agreed to develop jointly and to market an in-hospital automatic
blood glucose monitoring system (“In-Hospital Product”). Under the terms of the Collaboration Agreement we will
receive a royalty of up to 6% of commercial sales of the product. The Collaboration Agreement provides Edwards
with an exclusive license to certain of our intellectual property rights used in the In-Hospital Product (“Edwards
License”). The Edwards License is limited to the critical care sector of the in-hospital market. Our development
obligations under the Collaboration Agreement were completed in the fourth quarter of 2012.

Each of the milestones related to the Collaboration Agreement is considered to be substantive under the terms of the
Collaboration Agreement and, at the outset of the Collaboration Agreement, we were entitled to receive up to $12.0
million in milestones related to regulatory approvals and manufacturing readiness, subject to reductions based on the
timing of the receipt of approvals. We currently do not expect to receive the full amount of such milestones due to
regulatory and joint development delays. We did not recognize any consideration for milestones related to the
Collaboration Agreement for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013.

Tandem Diabetes Care, Inc.

On February 1, 2012, we entered into a non-exclusive Development and Commercialization Agreement (the “Tandem
Agreement”) with Tandem Diabetes Care, Inc. (“Tandem”) to integrate a future generation of our continuous glucose
monitoring technology with Tandem’s t:slinfthsulin delivery system in the United States. On January 4, 2013, the
Tandem Agreement was amended to allow for the integration of our G4 PLATINUM system with Tandem's t:slim
insulin delivery system in the United States. Under the terms of the Tandem Agreement, we are entitled to receive up
to $1.0 million to offset certain development, clinical and regulatory expenses. We received an initial payment of $1.0
million as a result of the execution of the Tandem Agreement. We received a $1.0 million milestone in July 2014
related to the regulatory submission by Tandem of their CGM enabled insulin pump. We are also entitled to receive
up to an additional $1.0 million upon the achievement of a milestone related to regulatory approvals as set forth in the
Tandem Agreement. Each of the milestones related to the Tandem Agreement is considered to be substantive. During
the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014 we recorded $1.0 million and $1.2 million, respectively, in
development grant and other revenue related to consideration previously received for development efforts and the $1.0
million milestone for regulatory submission. During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013 we
recorded $0.1 million and $0.4 million, respectively, in development grant and other revenue related to consideration
previously received for development efforts.

The Leona M. and Harry B Helmsley Charitable Trust

In July 2013, we were awarded a $4.0 million grant (the "Helmsley Grant") from the Leona M. and Harry B. Helmsley
Charitable Trust (the "Helmsley Trust") to accelerate the development of the sixth generation of our advanced
glucose-sensing technologies (the "Gen 6 Sensor"). The funding is milestone-based and is contingent upon our
meeting specific development milestones related to the Gen 6 Sensor over the next several years. Upon successful
commercialization of our Gen 6 Sensor, we are obligated to either (1) make royalty payments based on a percentage of
product sales of up to $2.0 million per year for four years, or (2) at our sole election, make a one-time $6.0 million
royalty payment. The Helmsley Grant funds will offset research and development expense as incurred and earned.
During 2013, $0.5 million of the Helmsley Grant was received and $0.5 million was earned. During the three months
ended September 30, 2014 we did not receive or earn any of the Helmsley Grant funds. During the nine months ended
September 30, 2014, $1.5 million of the Helmsley Grant was received and $1.5 million was earned.

6. Subsequent Events

On October 1, 2014, we entered into a Second Amendment to Office Lease (the “Second Lease Amendment’”) with
Kilroy Realty, L.P. (the “Landlord”) with respect to facilities in the buildings at 6340 Sequence Drive, 6310 Sequence
Drive, and 6290 Sequence Drive, each in San Diego, California (the “Buildings”).

Under the Second Lease Amendment, we will continue to lease approximately 129,000 square feet in the current
locations at 6340 Sequence Drive and 6310 Sequence Drive, and will lease an additional 45,000 square feet at 6290

23



Edgar Filing: DEXCOM INC - Form 10-Q

Sequence Drive, for a total of approximately 174,000 square feet of space. We also retain the right and obligation to
lease an additional 45,000 square feet in the 6290 Sequence Drive location (the “Additional Space”). The lease term
extends through March 2022. Rent payable by us under the Second Lease Amendment will be as follows (in millions):
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Fiscal Year Ending Amount (1)
Remainder of 2014 $0.7

2015 2.9

2016 3.5

2017 4.0

2018 5.0
Thereafter 16.9

Total $33.0

(1) Assumes rent payment for the Additional Space commencing on March 1, 2017.

In addition, under the Second Lease Amendment, we are obligated to pay a share of the real estate taxes and operating
costs for the Buildings. The total obligation for rent under the life of the lease for the Buildings is $33.0 million,
excluding real estate taxes and operating costs.

Provided we are not in default under the Second Lease Amendment and the Second Lease Amendment is still in
effect, we generally have the right to terminate the lease starting at the 55™ month of the Second Lease Amendment,
as well as to extend the lease for two additional five -year terms by giving notice to the Landlord prior to the end of
the initial term of the lease and any extension period, if applicable.

On November 3, 2014, we entered into the SweetSpot Settlement Agreement. Pursuant to the terms of the SweetSpot
Settlement Agreement, we will issue 89,300 shares of our common stock (the “Settlement Shares”) to the SweetSpot
Security-holders in exchange for the cancellation of the remaining Milestone Payments. The SweetSpot Settlement
Agreement also obligates us to file a Registration Statement on Form S-3 to cover the resale of the Settlement Shares
by the SweetSpot Security-holders. Pursuant to the terms of the SweetSpot Settlement Agreement, upon issuance of
the Settlement Shares, we will have no further obligation to issue any additional shares of our Common Stock to the
SweetSpot Security-holders under the Merger Agreement.

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
ITEM 2.

OPERATIONS
CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
This document, including the following Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations, contains forward-looking statements that are based upon current expectations. These forward-looking
statements fall within the meaning of the federal securities laws that relate to future events or our future financial
performance. In some cases, you can identify forward-looking statements by terminology such as “may,” “will,” “expect,”
“plan,” “anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate,” “intend,” “potential” or “continue” or the negative of these terms or other comparat
terminology. Forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties. Our actual results and the timing of events
could differ materially from those anticipated in our forward-looking statements as a result of many factors, including
product performance, a lack of acceptance in the marketplace by physicians and customers, insufficient customer
demand, the inability to manufacture products in commercial quantities at an acceptable cost, possible delays in our
research and development programs, the inability of customers to receive reimbursements from third-party payors, the
impact of competitive products and pricing, our ability to obtain regulatory approvals and introduce new products,
other uncertainties related to regulatory processes, our ability to respond to changing laws and regulations affecting
our industry and changing enforcement practices related thereto, inadequate financial and other resources, global
economic and political conditions, and the other risks set forth below under “Risk Factors™ and elsewhere in this report.
We assume no obligation to update any of the forward-looking statements after the date of this report or to conform
these forward-looking statements to actual results.
Overview
We are a medical device company primarily focused on the design, development and commercialization of continuous
glucose monitoring systems for ambulatory use by people with diabetes and for use by healthcare providers for the
treatment of people with and without diabetes. Unless the context requires otherwise, the terms "we," "us," "our," the
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Background

From inception to 2006, we devoted substantially all of our resources to start-up activities, raising capital and research
and development, including product design, testing, manufacturing and clinical trials. Since 2006, we have devoted
considerable resources to the commercialization of our ambulatory continuous glucose monitoring systems, including
the SEVEN PLUS (as described below under the caption “Products”) and G4 PLATINUM (as described below under
the caption “Products”), as well as the continued research and clinical development of our technology platform.

The International Diabetes Federation (“IDF”) estimates that in 2013, 382 million people around the world had diabetes,
and the Centers for Disease Control (“CDC”) estimates that in 2012, diabetes affected 29.1 million people in the United
States, of which 8.1 million were undiagnosed. IDF estimates that by 2035, the worldwide incidence of people
suffering from diabetes will reach 592 million. According to the CDC's National Vital Statistics Reports for 2010,
diabetes was the seventh leading cause of death by disease in the United States. According to the Congressional
Diabetes Caucus, diabetes is the leading cause of kidney failure, adult-onset blindness, lower-limb amputations, and
significant cause of heart disease and stroke, high blood pressure and nerve damage. According to the IDF, there were
an estimated 5.1 million deaths attributable to diabetes globally in 2013. The American Diabetes Association (“ADA”)
Fast Facts, revised in July 2014, states that diabetes is the primary cause of death for more than 69,000 Americans
each year, and contributes to the death of more than 234,000 Americans annually.

According to the CDC 2011 National Diabetes Fact Sheet, in the United States, another individual is diagnosed with
diabetes every 17 seconds. According to the Congressional Diabetes Caucus website as of August 6, 2014, each day
approximately 5,082 people are diagnosed with diabetes, and about 1.9 million people 20 years or older were
diagnosed in 2010. In addition to those newly diagnosed, every 24 hours there are: 238 amputations in people with
diabetes, 120 people who enter end-stage kidney disease programs, and 48 people who go blind.

According to the ADA one in every five healthcare dollars was spent on treating diabetes in 2012, and the direct
medical costs and indirect expenditures attributable to diabetes in the United States were an estimated $245 billion, an
increase of $71 billion, or approximately 41%, since 2007. Of the $245 billion in overall expenses, the ADA estimated
that approximately $176 billion were direct costs associated with diabetes care, chronic complications and excess
general medical costs, and $69 billion were indirect medical costs. The ADA also found that average medical
expenditures among people with diagnosed diabetes were 2.3 times higher than for people without diabetes in 2012.
According to the IDF, expenditures attributable to diabetes were an estimated $548 billion globally in 2013. The IDF
estimates that expenditures attributable to diabetes will grow to $678 billion globally by 2035.

We believe continuous glucose monitoring has the potential to enable more people with diabetes to achieve and
sustain tight glycemic control. The Diabetes Control and Complications Trial (“DCCT”’) demonstrated that improving
blood glucose control lowers the risk of developing diabetes-related complications by up to 50%. The study also
demonstrated that people with Type 1 diabetes achieved sustained benefits with intensive management. Yet, according
to an article published in the Journal of the American Medical Association (“JAMA”) in 2004, less than 50% of diabetes
patients were meeting ADA standards for glucose control (Alc), and only 37% of people with diabetes were achieving
their glycemic targets. The CDC estimated that as of 2006, 63.4% of all adults with diabetes were monitoring their
blood glucose levels on a daily basis, and that 86.7% of insulin-requiring patients with diabetes monitored daily.
Various clinical studies also demonstrate the benefits of continuous glucose monitoring and that continuous glucose
monitoring is equally effective in patients who administer insulin through multiple daily injections or through use of
continuous subcutaneous insulin infusion pumps. Results of a Juvenile Diabetes Research Foundation (“JDRF”) study
published in the New England Journal of Medicine in 2008, and the extension phase of the study, published in
Diabetes Care in 2009, demonstrated that continuous glucose monitoring improved Alc levels and reduced incidence
of hypoglycemia for patients over the age of 25 and for all patients of all ages who utilized continuous glucose
monitoring regularly.

Our initial target market in the United States consists of an estimated 30% of people with Type 1 diabetes who utilize
insulin pump therapy and an estimated 50% of people with Type 1 diabetes who utilize multiple daily insulin
injections. Our broader target market in the United States consists of our initial target market plus an estimated 20% of
people with Type 1 diabetes using conventional insulin therapy and the estimated 27% of people with Type 2 diabetes
who require insulin. Although our initial focus was within the United States, we have expanded our operations to

27



Edgar Filing: DEXCOM INC - Form 10-Q

include those European, Asian, Latin American and other countries that recognize the CE Mark.

19

28



Edgar Filing: DEXCOM INC - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents

Products

Ambulatory Product Line: SEVEN® PLUS, DexCom G4® and DexCom G4® PLATINUM

We received approval from the Food and Drug Administration (“FDA”) and commercialized our first product in 2006.
In 2007, we received approval and began commercializing our second generation system, the DexCom SEVEN. We
no longer market or provide support for the DexCom SEVEN system. In 2009 we received approval for our third
generation system, the DexCom SEVEN PLUS, which is designed for up to seven days of continuous use, and we
began commercializing this product in the first quarter of 2009. On June 14, 2012, we received Conformité Européene
Marking (“CE Mark”) approval for our fourth generation continuous glucose monitoring system, the DexCom G4
system, enabling commercialization of the DexCom G4 system in the European Union, Australia, New Zealand and
the countries in Asia and Latin America that recognize the CE Mark. On October 5, 2012, we received approval from
the FDA for the DexCom G4 PLATINUM, which is designed for up to seven days of continuous use by adults with
diabetes, and we began commercializing this product in the U.S. in the fourth quarter of 2012. On February 14, 2013,
we received CE Mark approval for a pediatric indication for our DexCom G4 system, enabling us to market and sell
this system in the European Union, Australia, New Zealand and the countries in Asia and Latin America that
recognize the CE Mark to persons two years old and older who have diabetes (hereinafter referred to as the "Pediatric
Indication"), and we initiated a limited commercial launch in the second quarter of 2013. In connection with our
receipt of CE Mark approval for the Pediatric Indication, we changed the name of the DexCom G4 system to the
DexCom G4 PLATINUM system. On February 3, 2014, we received approval from the FDA for a Pediatric
Indication for the DexCom G4 PLATINUM system in the United States. On June 3, 2014, we received approval from
the FDA for an expanded indication for the DexCom G4 PLATINUM for professional use. This expanded indication
allows healthcare professionals to purchase the DexCom G4 PLATINUM devices for use with multiple patients.
Healthcare professionals can use the insights gained from a DexCom G4 PLATINUM professional session to adjust
therapy and to educate and motivate patients to modify their behavior after viewing the effects that specific foods,
exercise, stress, and medications have on their glucose levels. Unless the context requires otherwise, the term "G4
PLATINUM" shall refer to the DexCom G4 and DexCom G4 PLATINUM systems (and all associated indications of
use for such systems) that are commercialized by us in and outside of the United States.

As compared to the SEVEN PLUS, the G4 PLATINUM offers:

an improved sensor wire design that allows more scalable manufacturing,

a smaller, sleeker receiver that is capable of displaying data in color,

anew transmitter design that offers improved communication range with the receiver which allows for improved data
capture,

additional user interface and algorithm enhancements that are intended to make the user experience more
customizable and to make its glucose monitoring function more accurate especially in the hypoglycemic range, and
the ability to market and sell to an expanded customer population due to the approval by the FDA of, and our
obtaining a CE Mark for, a Pediatric Indication.

With the approval of the G4 PLATINUM systems, we have reduced our worldwide marketing and sales efforts related
to SEVEN PLUS.

DexCom SHARE™

On October 17, 2014, we received approval from the FDA for the DexCom SHARE remote monitoring system.
DexCom SHARE enables users of our G4 PLATINUM System to have their sensor glucose information remotely
monitored by their family or friends. To use DexCom SHARE, the G4 PLATINUM user docks their G4 PLATINUM
Receiver in the DexCom SHARE Cradle and their sensor glucose information is wirelessly transmitted to, and viewed
by, such patient’s friends or family through the DexCom SHARE mobile application. DexCom SHARE provides
secondary notifications to individuals designated by a G4 PLATINUM System user and does not replace real time
continuous glucose monitoring or standard home blood glucose monitoring.

In-Hospital Product Line: GlucoClear®

To address the in-hospital critical care patient population, we entered into an exclusive agreement with Edwards
Lifesciences LLC (“Edwards”) in 2008 to develop jointly and market a specific glucose monitoring product platform for
the in-hospital critical care market. On October 30, 2009, the first generation blood-based in-vivo automated glucose
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monitoring system, which was branded the GlucoClear, received CE Mark approval for use by healthcare providers in
the hospital. In January 2013, Edwards received CE Mark approval for the second generation system. A very limited
commercial launch of the
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first generation GlucoClear system was initiated in Europe in 2009. In 2013, Edwards completed another very limited
commercial launch in Europe of the second generation GlucoClear system. There are no current commercial activities
led by Edwards to continue the commercialization of the GlucoClear system.

SweetSpot

Through our acquisition of SweetSpot in 2012, we have a software platform that enables our customers to aggregate
and analyze data from certain diabetes devices and to share it with their healthcare providers. In November 2011,
SweetSpot received 510(k) clearance from the FDA to market to clinics a data management service, which helps
healthcare providers and patients see, understand and use blood glucose meter data to diagnose and manage diabetes.
SweetSpot’s data transfer service is registered with the FDA as a Medical Device Data System (“MDDS”) and allows
researchers to control the transfer of data from certain diabetes devices to research tools and databases according to
their own research workflows. SweetSpot’s software provides an advanced cloud-based platform for uploading,
processing and delivering health data and transforms raw output from certain medical devices into useful information
for healthcare providers, individuals and researchers.

Sensor Augmented Insulin Pumps

We are leveraging our technology platform to enhance the capabilities of our current products and to develop
additional continuous glucose monitoring products. In 2008 and 2012, we entered into development agreements with
Animas Corporation (“Animas”), a subsidiary of Johnson & Johnson, and with Tandem Diabetes Care, Inc. (“Tandem”),
respectively. The purpose of each of these development relationships is to integrate our technology into the insulin
pump product offerings of the respective partner, enabling the partner's insulin pump to receive glucose readings from
our transmitter and display this information on the pump's screen. The Animas insulin pump product augmented with
our sensor technology has been branded the Vibe®, and received CE Mark approval in May 2011, which allows
Animas to market the Vibe in the countries that recognize CE Mark approvals. In July 2014, Tandem filed their
submission for FDA approval of their CGM-enabled insulin pump in the United States.

Future Products

We plan to develop future generations of technologies focused on improved performance and convenience and that
will enable intelligent insulin administration. Over the longer term, we plan to develop networked platforms with open
architecture, connectivity and transmitters capable of communicating with other devices and software systems. Our
product development timelines are highly dependent on our ability to achieve clinical endpoints and regulatory and
legal requirements and to overcome technology challenges, and our product development timelines may be delayed
due to extended regulatory approval timelines, scheduling issues with patients and investigators, requests from
institutional review boards, sensor performance and manufacturing supply constraints, among other factors. In
addition, support of these clinical trials requires significant resources from employees involved in the production of
our products, including research and development, manufacturing, quality assurance, and clinical and regulatory
personnel. Even if our development and clinical trial efforts are successful, the FDA may not approve our products,
and even if approved, we may not achieve acceptance in the marketplace by physicians and people with diabetes.

Commercial Operations

We have built a direct sales organization in the United States to call on endocrinologists, physicians and diabetes
educators who can educate and influence patient adoption of continuous glucose monitoring. The approval by the
FDA of a Pediatric Indication for our G4 PLATINUM system in February 2014 allows our sales organization to call
on pediatric endocrinologists and pediatricians who can educate and influence adoption of continuous glucose
monitoring by parents who have children aged two years or older with diabetes. We believe that focusing efforts on
these participants is important given the instrumental role they each play in the decision-making process for diabetes
therapy. To complement our direct sales efforts, we have entered into a limited number of U.S. and international
distribution arrangements that allow distributors to sell our products. We believe our direct, highly specialized and
focused sales organization is sufficient for us to support our sales efforts.

As a medical device company, reimbursement from Medicare and private third-party healthcare payors is an important
element of our success. Although the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid (“CMS”) released 2008 Alpha-Numeric
Healthcare Common Procedure Coding System (“HCPCS”) codes applicable to each of the three components of our
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continuous glucose monitoring systems, to date, our approved products are not reimbursed by virtue of a national
coverage decision by Medicare. It is not known when, if ever, Medicare will adopt a national coverage decision with
respect to continuous glucose monitoring devices. Until any such coverage decision is adopted by Medicare,
reimbursement of our products will generally be limited to
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those customers covered by third-party payors that have adopted coverage policies for continuous glucose monitoring
devices that includes our devices. As of November 6, 2014, the seven largest private third-party payors, in terms of the
number of covered lives, have issued coverage policies for the category of continuous glucose monitoring devices. In
addition, we have negotiated contracted rates with six of those third-party payors for the purchase of our SEVEN
PLUS and G4 PLATINUM systems by their members. Many of these coverage policies are restrictive in nature and
require the patient to comply with extensive documentation and other requirements to demonstrate medical necessity
under the policy. In addition, customers who are insured by payors that do not offer coverage for our devices will have
to bear the financial cost of the products. We currently employ in-house reimbursement expertise to assist customers
in obtaining reimbursement from private third-party payors. We also maintain a field-based reimbursement team
charged with calling on third-party private payors to obtain coverage decisions and contracts. We have had formal
meetings and have increased our efforts to create and liberalize coverage policies with third-party payors and expect to
continue to do so in fiscal 2014 and 2015. However, unless government and other third-party payors provide adequate
coverage and reimbursement for our products, people with diabetes may not use them on a widespread basis.

We currently manufacture our devices at our headquarters in San Diego, California. These facilities have more than
13,000 square feet of laboratory space and approximately 10,000 square feet of controlled environment rooms. In July
2012, the FDA completed an inspection of our facilities, and did not identify any observations or require any other
types of corrective action. During a routine FDA post-approval facility inspection ending on November 7, 2013, the
FDA issued a Form 483 with several observations regarding DexCom Medical Device Reporting (MDR) procedures
and complaint reportability determinations. DexCom responded to the observations on November 26, 2013. On March
14, 2014, we received a warning letter from the FDA related to administrative deficiencies in filing MDRs. On April
2, 2014, we responded to the warning letter. The FDA confirmed receipt and is currently reviewing our response.
There are technical challenges to increasing manufacturing capacity, including FDA qualification of new
manufacturing facilities, equipment design and automation, material procurement, problems with production yields,
and quality control and assurance. We have focused significant effort on continual improvement programs in our
manufacturing operations intended to improve quality, yields and throughput. We have made progress in
manufacturing to enable us to supply adequate amounts of product to support our commercialization efforts, however
there can be no assurances that supply will not be constrained going forward. Additionally, the production of our
continuous glucose monitoring systems must occur in a highly controlled and clean environment to minimize particles
and other yield- and quality-limiting contaminants. Developing commercial-scale manufacturing facilities has and will
continue to require the investment of substantial additional funds and the hiring and retaining of additional
management, quality assurance, quality control and technical personnel who have the necessary manufacturing
experience. Manufacturing is subject to numerous risks and uncertainties described in detail in “Risk Factors” below.
We manufacture our G4 PLATINUM systems with components supplied by outside vendors and with parts
manufactured by us internally. Key components that we manufacture internally include our wire-based sensors for our
G4 PLATINUM systems. The remaining components and assemblies are purchased from outside vendors. We then
assemble, test, package and ship the finished G4 PLATINUM systems, which include a reusable transmitter, a
receiver, and disposable sensors.

Product revenues are generated from the sale of durable continuous glucose monitoring systems (receivers and
transmitters) and disposable sensors through a direct sales force in the United States as well as through distribution
arrangements in the United States, Canada, Australia, New Zealand, and in portions of Europe, Asia, Latin America
and the Middle East. The sensor is inserted by the user and is intended to be used continuously for up to seven days,
after which it may be replaced with a new disposable sensor. Our transmitter and receiver are reusable. In the event we
establish an installed base of customers using our products, we expect to generate an increasing portion of our
revenues through recurring sales of our disposable sensors. We recognize product revenue generally upon shipment
and our sales terms provide for customer payment at the time of order, payment due within negotiated contractual
terms with insurance payors, or with the issuance of a purchase order or letter of credit for certain distributors and
institutions.

As of September 30, 2014, we had an accumulated deficit of $499.1 million. We expect our losses to continue as we
proceed with our commercialization and research and development activities. We have financed our operations
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primarily through offerings of equity securities and debt. In November 2012, we entered into a loan and security
agreement (the “Loan Agreement”) that provides for (i) a $15.0 million revolving line of credit and (ii) initially
provided a total term loan of up to $20.0 million (the “Term Loan”). Per the Loan Agreement, $7.0 million was
advanced under the Term Loan at the funding date in November 2012, and up to $13.0 million in additional funds was
initially available upon our request from June 1, 2013 to September 30, 2013 (the "Draw Period"). In August 2013, the
Loan Agreement was amended to change the Draw Period for the additional funds under the Term Loan to January 1,
2014 through March 31, 2014, at which time the Draw Period expired. There is currently $15.0 million available
under the Loan Agreement. In July 2013, we were awarded a $4.0 million grant from
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the Helmsley Trust to accelerate the development of the sixth generation of our advanced glucose-sensing
technologies. As of September 30, 2014, we had already received $2.0 million from the Helmsley Trust.

Financial Operations

Revenue

We sell our durable systems and disposable units through a direct sales force in the United States and through
distribution arrangements in the United States, Australia, New Zealand, and in portions of Europe, Asia, the Middle
East and Latin America. We have contracts with certain distributors who stock our products (“Stocking Distributors”),
whereby the distributors fulfill orders for our product from their inventory. We also have contracts with certain
distributors that do not stock our products, but rather products are shipped directly to the customer by us on behalf of
our distributor (“Drop-Ship Distributors”). We expect that revenues we generate from the sales of our products will
fluctuate from quarter to quarter.

Between 2008 and 2012, we entered into joint development and collaboration agreements with Animas and Tandem,
as well as other third parties under agreements that have since expired or been terminated, under which we recognized
development grant and other revenue received pursuant to each agreement ratably over the term of the development
period. We recognize development milestones associated with each agreement as revenue upon achievement of each
milestone if the milestone is considered substantive.

Cost of Sales

Product cost of sales includes direct labor and materials costs related to each product sold or produced, including
assembly, test labor and scrap, as well as factory overhead supporting our manufacturing operations. Factory overhead
includes facilities, material procurement and control, manufacturing engineering, quality assurance, supervision and
management. These costs are primarily salary, fringe benefits, share-based compensation, facility expense, supplies
and purchased services. A large portion of our costs are currently fixed due to our moderate level of production
volumes compared to our potential capacity. All of our manufacturing costs are included in product cost of sales.
Development and other cost of sales consists primarily of salaries, fringe benefits, facility expense, and supplies
directly attributable to our development contracts.

Research and Development

Our research and development expenses primarily consist of engineering and research expenses related to our
continuous glucose monitoring technology, clinical trials, regulatory expenses, quality assurance programs, materials
and products for clinical trials. Research and development expenses are primarily related to employee compensation,
including salary, fringe benefits, share-based compensation, and temporary employee expenses. We also incur
significant expenses to operate our clinical trials including clinical site reimbursement, clinical trial product and
associated travel expenses. Our research and development expenses also include fees for design services, contractors
and development materials.

Selling, General and Administrative

Our selling, general and administrative expenses primarily consist of salary, fringe benefits and share-based
compensation for our executive, financial, sales, marketing and administrative functions. Other significant expenses
include trade show expenses, sales samples, insurance, professional fees for our outside legal counsel and independent
auditors, litigation expenses, patent application expenses and consulting expenses.

Results of Operations

Quarter Ended September 30, 2014 Compared to September 30, 2013

Revenue, Cost of Sales and Gross Profit

Product revenues increased $25.4 million to $67.9 million for the three months ended September 30, 2014 compared
to $42.5 million for the three months ended September 30, 2013 based primarily on increased sales volume of our
durable systems and disposable sensors, due to the continued growth of our installed base of customers using our G4
PLATINUM system. Product cost of sales increased $7.0 million to $21.8 million for the three months ended
September 30, 2014 compared to $14.8 million for the three months ended September 30, 2013 primarily due to
increased sales volume. The product gross profit of $46.1 million for the three months ended September 30, 2014
increased $18.4 million compared to $27.7 million for the same period in 2013, primarily due to increased revenue,
and the greater sales mix of our higher margin G4 PLATINUM system compared to our SEVEN PLUS system.
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Revenue from products shipped to our Drop-Ship Distributors’ customers was $6.5 million, or 9%, of our total
revenues for the three months ended September 30, 2014 compared to $6.4 million, or 15%, of our total revenues for
the three months
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ended September 30, 2013. Revenue from the shipment of products to Stocking Distributors was $40.0 million, or
58%, of our total revenues for the three months ended September 30, 2014 compared to $20.3 million, or 47%, of our
total revenues for the three months ended September 30, 2013.

Development grant and other revenues increased $0.7 million to $1.1 million for the three months ended

September 30, 2014 compared to $0.4 million for the three months ended September 30, 2013. We did not incur any
development and other cost of sales during the three months ended September 30, 2014. Development and other cost
of sales was $0.5 million for the three months ended September 30, 2013. The increase in development grant and
other revenues during the three months ended September 30, 2014 was primarily due to the $1.0 million milestone
received in July 2014 from Tandem for their regulatory submission to the FDA of a CGM enabled insulin pump,
partially offset by decrease in development grant and other revenues related to the completion of development
activities under the Collaboration Agreement with Edwards. The decrease in costs associated with development was
primarily due to fewer development obligations during the period with respect to our collaboration and development
arrangements.

Research and Development. Research and development expense increased $6.7 million to $18.5 million for the three
months ended September 30, 2014, compared to $11.8 million for the three months ended September 30, 2013. The
increase was primarily due to additional headcount costs to support development of future products. Significant
elements of the increase in research and development costs included $2.8 million in additional salaries, bonus and
payroll related costs, $2.3 million in additional share-based compensation and $2.3 million in additional consulting
costs, partially offset by $2.0 million in lower non-cash charges related to fair value adjustments of the SweetSpot
acquisition contingent consideration resulting from updates to assumed probability of achievement of milestones and
adjustments to the discount periods.

Selling, General and Administrative. Selling, general and administrative expense increased $12.1 million to $33.7
million for the three months ended September 30, 2014, compared to $21.6 million for the three months ended
September 30, 2013. The increase was primarily due to higher headcount related selling costs and information
technology infrastructure costs to support revenue growth and the continued commercialization of our products.
Significant elements of the increase in selling, general, and administrative expenses included $4.4 million in
additional share-based compensation costs, $3.7 million in additional salaries, bonus, and payroll related costs, and
$0.7 million in additional sales commissions.

Interest Expense. Interest expense was $0.2 million for each of the three months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013
and is related to our Loan Agreement.

Nine Months Ended September 30, 2014 Compared to September 30, 2013

Revenue, Cost of Sales and Gross Profit

Product revenues increased $67.0 million to $172.8 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 compared
to $105.8 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 based primarily on increased sales volume of our
durable systems and disposable sensors, due to the continued growth of our installed base of customers using our G4
PLATINUM system. Product cost of sales increased $16.5 million to $57.4 million for the nine months ended
September 30, 2014 compared to $40.9 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 primarily due to
increased sales volume. The product gross profit of $115.4 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2014
increased $50.5 million compared to $64.9 million for the same period in 2013, primarily due to increased revenue,
and the greater sales mix of our higher margin G4 PLATINUM system compared to our SEVEN PLUS system.
Revenue from products shipped to our Drop-Ship Distributors’ customers was $19.9 million, or 11%, of our total
revenues for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 compared to $17.0 million, or 16%, of our total revenues for
the nine months ended September 30, 2013. Revenue from the shipment of products to Stocking Distributors was
$98.6 million, or 56%, of our total revenues for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 compared to $46.4
million, or 43%, of our total revenues for the nine months ended September 30, 2013.

Development grant and other revenues decreased $0.4 million to $2.1 million for the nine months ended

September 30, 2014 compared to $2.5 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2013. Development and other
cost of sales decreased $0.8 million to $0.6 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 compared to $1.4
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million for the nine months ended September 30, 2013. The decrease in development grant and other revenues during
the nine months ended September 30, 2014 was primarily due to the termination of that certain Research and
Development Agreement with Roche Diagnostics Operations, Inc. in February 2013 and the completion of
development activities under the Collaboration Agreement with Edwards, partially offset by the $1.0 million
milestone received in July 2014 from Tandem for their regulatory submission to the FDA of a CGM- enabled insulin
pump. The decrease in costs associated with development was primarily due to fewer development obligations during
the period with respect to our collaboration and development arrangements.
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Research and Development. Research and development expense increased $15.6 million to $47.8 million for the nine
months ended September 30, 2014, compared to $32.2 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2013. The
increase was primarily due to additional non-cash equity-related expenses and additional headcount costs to support
development of future products. Significant elements of the increase in research and development costs included $5.9
million in additional share-based compensation, $4.9 million in additional salaries, bonus and payroll related costs and
$4.5 million in additional consulting costs, partially offset by $2.7 million in lower non-cash charges related to fair
value adjustments of the SweetSpot acquisition contingent consideration resulting from updates to assumed
probability of achievement of milestones and adjustments to the discount periods and $1.4 million related to the
Helmsley Grant funds earned.

Selling, General and Administrative. Selling, general and administrative expense increased $31.8 million to $92.2
million for the nine months ended September 30, 2014, compared to $60.4 million for the nine months ended
September 30, 2013. The increase was primarily due to higher headcount related selling costs and information
technology infrastructure costs to support revenue growth and the continued commercialization of our products.
Significant elements of the increase in selling, general, and administrative expenses included $10.5 million in
additional share-based compensation costs, $9.0 million in additional salaries, bonus, and payroll related costs, $3.1
million in additional sales commissions, and $1.0 million in additional travel costs.

Interest Expense. Interest expense was $0.6 million for each of the nine months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013
and is related to our Loan Agreement.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We are in the early commercialization stage and have incurred losses since our inception in May 1999. As of
September 30, 2014, we had an accumulated deficit of $499.1 million and had working capital of $82.8 million. Our
cash, cash equivalents and short-term marketable securities totaled $74.9 million, excluding $1.0 million in restricted
cash. To date, we have funded our operations primarily through offerings of equity securities and debt, and the sales
of our products.

In July 2013, we were awarded a $4.0 million grant (the "Helmsley Grant") from the Leona M. and Harry B. Helmsley
Charitable Trust (the "Helmsley Trust") to accelerate the development of the sixth generation of our advanced
glucose-sensing technologies (the "Gen 6 Sensor"). The funding is milestone based and is contingent upon our
meeting specific development milestones related to the Gen 6 Sensor over the next several years. Upon the successful
commercialization of the Gen 6 Sensor, we are obligated to either (1) make royalty payments of up to $2.0 million per
year for four years, or (2) at our sole election, make a one-time $6.0 million royalty payment. As of September 30,
2014 we have received $2.0 million of the Helmsley Grant funds.

Net Cash Used in/Provided by Operating Activities. Net cash provided by operating activities increased $17.2 million
to $15.2 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2014, compared to $2.0 million net cash used in operating
activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2013. The increase in cash provided by operations was primarily
due to $15.7 million in higher non-cash charges primarily comprised of share-based compensation and $3.5 million in
lower net loss, partially offset by an additional $2.0 million cash outflow from changes in operating assets and
liabilities.

Net Cash Used in/Provided by Investing Activities. Net cash used in investing activities was $12.1 million for the nine
months ended September 30, 2014, compared to $20.4 million net cash provided by investing activities for the nine
months ended September 30, 2013. The change in cash used in investing activities was primarily due to a $28.6
million decrease in proceeds from the maturity of short-term marketable securities and by the use of $11.6 million to
purchase equipment to support manufacturing improvements for the nine months ended September 30, 2014,
compared to $5.6 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2013, partially offset by a $2.1 million decrease in
cash used to purchase short-term marketable securities.

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities. Net cash provided by financing activities increased $10.0 million to $16.9
million for the nine months ended September 30, 2014, compared to $6.9 million for the nine months ended
September 30, 2013. The increase was due to $11.6 million increase in proceeds from the issuance of common stock
pursuant to the exercise of then-outstanding stock options for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 compared to
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the nine months ended September 30, 2013, partially offset by the repayment of long-term debt of $1.6 million for the
nine months ended September 30, 2014.
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Operating Capital and Capital Expenditure Requirements

We anticipate that we will continue to incur net losses as we incur expenses and expand the commercialization of our
approved products, develop additional continuous glucose monitoring products, and expand our marketing,
manufacturing and corporate infrastructure.

We believe that our cash, cash equivalents, short-term marketable securities balances, and projected cash contributions
from our commercial operations and existing partnership arrangements will be sufficient to meet our anticipated cash
requirements with respect to the continued scale-up of our commercialization activities, research and development
activities, including clinical trials, the expansion of our marketing, manufacturing and corporate infrastructure, and to
meet our other anticipated cash needs through at least September 30, 2015. If our available cash, cash equivalents and
short-term marketable securities are insufficient to satisfy our liquidity requirements, or if we develop additional
products or new markets for our existing products, we may seek to sell additional equity or debt securities or obtain an
additional credit facility. The sale of additional equity and debt securities may result in additional dilution to our
stockholders. If we raise additional funds through the issuance of debt securities or preferred stock, these securities
could have rights senior to those of our common stock and could contain covenants that would restrict our operations.
We may require additional capital beyond our currently forecasted amounts. Any such required additional capital may
not be available on reasonable terms, if at all. Additionally, there can be no assurance that we will be successful in
obtaining additional cash contributions from future partnership arrangements. Our ability to transition to, and maintain
profitable operations is dependent upon achieving a level of revenues adequate to support our cost structure. If events
or circumstances occur such that we do not meet our operating plan as expected, or if we are unable to obtain
additional financing, we may be required to reduce planned increases in compensation related expenses or other
operating expenses related to research, development, and commercialization activities, which could have an adverse
impact on our ability to achieve our intended business objectives.

Because of the numerous risks and uncertainties associated with the development of continuous glucose monitoring
technologies, we are unable to estimate the exact amounts of capital outlays and operating expenditures associated
with our current and anticipated clinical trials. Our future funding requirements will depend on many factors,
including, but not limited to:

the revenue generated by sales of our approved products and other future products;

the expenses we incur in manufacturing, developing, selling and marketing our products;

the quality levels of our products and services;

the third-party reimbursement of our products for our customers;

our ability to efficiently scale our manufacturing operations to meet demand for our current and any future products;
the costs, timing and risks of delays of additional regulatory approvals;

the costs of filing, prosecuting, defending and enforcing any patent claims and other intellectual property rights;

the rate of progress and cost of our clinical trials and other development activities;

the success of our research and development efforts;

the emergence of competing or complementary technological developments;

the terms and timing of any collaborative, licensing and other arrangements that we may establish; and

the acquisition of businesses, products and technologies and our ability to integrate and manage any acquired
businesses, products and technologies, including without limitation, SweetSpot.

Contractual Obligations

On October 1, 2014, we entered into a Second Amendment to Office Lease (the “Second Lease Amendment”) with
Kilroy Realty, L.P. (the “Landlord”) with respect to facilities in the buildings at 6340 Sequence Drive, 6310 Sequence
Drive, and 6290 Sequence Drive, each in San Diego, California (the “Buildings”).

Under the Second Lease Amendment, we will continue to lease approximately 129,000 square feet in our current
locations at 6340 Sequence Drive and 6310 Sequence Drive, and will lease an additional 45,000 square feet at 6290
Sequence Drive, for a total of approximately 174,000 square feet of space. We also retain the right and obligation to
lease an additional 45,000 square feet in the 6290 Sequence Drive location. The lease term extends through March
2022. Rent payable by us under the Second Lease Amendment will be as follows (in millions):
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Fiscal Year Ending Amount (1)
Remainder of 2014 $0.7
2015 2.9
2016 3.5
2017 4.0
2018 5.0
2019 5.2
2020 53
2021 5.5
2022 0.9
Total $33.0

(1) Assumes rent payment for the Additional Space commencing on March 1, 2017.

In addition, under the Second Lease Amendment, we are obligated to pay a share of the real estate taxes and operating
costs for the Buildings. The total obligation for rent under the life of the lease for the Buildings is $33 million,
excluding real estate taxes and operating costs.

Provided we are not in default under the Second Lease Amendment and the Second Lease Amendment is still in
effect, we generally have the right to terminate the lease starting at the 55% month of the Second Lease Amendment,
as well as to extend the lease for two additional five-year periods by giving notice to the Landlord prior to the end of
the initial term of the lease and any extension period, if applicable.

We are party to various purchase arrangements related to components used in manufacturing and research and
development activities. As of September 30, 2014, we had purchase commitments with certain vendors totaling
approximately $26.9 million due within one year. There are no material purchase commitments due beyond one year.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have not engaged in any off-balance sheet activities.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based on our consolidated financial
statements, which we have prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP. The preparation of these consolidated financial
statements requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements as well as the
reported revenue and expenses during the reporting periods. On an ongoing basis, we evaluate our estimates and
judgments. We base our estimates on historical experience and on various other factors that we believe are reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying value of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under
different assumptions or conditions.

Our significant accounting policies are more fully described in Note 1 to our consolidated financial statements
included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013. Our accounting policies
and estimates which are most critical to a full understanding and evaluation of our reported financial results are
described in the Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations in Item 7 of
our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 30, 2013. There were no material changes to our
critical accounting policies and estimates during the nine months ended September 30, 2014.

Recent Accounting Guidance

In July 2013, the FASB issued authoritative guidance for Presentation of an Unrecognized Tax Benefit When a Net
Operating Loss Carryforward, a Similar Tax Loss, or a Tax Credit Carryforward Exists, which provides explicit
guidance on the financial statement presentation of an unrecognized tax benefit when a net operating loss
carryforward, a similar tax loss, or a tax credit carryforward exists. The guidance is effective prospectively for fiscal
years, and interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2013, with early adoption permitted. We
adopted this guidance on January 1, 2014, and the adoption of this guidance did not have a material impact on our
consolidated financial statements or related financial statement disclosures.
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In May 2014, the FASB issued authoritative guidance for Revenue from Contracts with Customers, to supersede
nearly all existing revenue recognition guidance under U.S. GAAP. The core principle of the guidance is to recognize
revenues when promised goods or services are transferred to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration
that is expected to be received for those goods or services. The guidance defines a five step process to achieve this
core principle and it is possible when the five step process is applied, more judgment and estimates may be required
within the revenue recognition process than required under existing U.S. GAAP including identifying performance
obligations in the contract, estimating the amount of variable consideration to include in the transaction price and
allocating the transaction price to each separate performance obligation. The updated standard permits the use of
either the retrospective or cumulative effect transition method and is effective for us in our first quarter of fiscal 2017.
Early adoption is not permitted. We have not yet selected a transition method and we are currently evaluating the
effect that the updated standard will have on our consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Interest Rate Risk

The primary objective of our investment activities is to preserve our capital for the purpose of funding operations
while at the same time maximizing the income we receive from our investments without significantly increasing risk.
To achieve these objectives, our investment policy allows us to maintain a portfolio of cash equivalents and short-term
investments in a variety of securities, including money market funds, U.S. Treasury debt and corporate debt securities.
Due to the short-term nature of our investments, we believe that we have no material exposure to interest rate risk.
Foreign Currency Risk

To date we have recorded no product sales in other than U.S. dollars. We have only limited business transactions in
foreign currencies. We do not currently engage in hedging or similar transactions to reduce our foreign currency risks.
We believe we have no material exposure to risk from changes in foreign currency exchange rates at this time. We
will continue to monitor and evaluate our internal processes relating to foreign currency exchange, including the
potential use of hedging strategies.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Regulations under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 require public companies to maintain “disclosure controls and
procedures,” which are defined to mean a company’s controls and other procedures that are designed to ensure that
information required to be disclosed in the reports that it files or submits under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is
accumulated and timely communicated to management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer, recorded, processed, summarized, and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and
Exchange Commission’s rules and forms. Our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief
Financial Officer, conducted an evaluation as of the end of the period covered by this report of the effectiveness of our
disclosure controls and procedures. Based on their evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial
Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective for this purpose.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during our last fiscal quarter that have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect our internal control over financial reporting.
Limitation on Effectiveness of Controls

It should be noted that any system of controls, however well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable, and
not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the system are met. The design of any control system is based, in part,
upon the benefits of the control system relative to its costs. Control systems can be circumvented by the individual
acts of some persons, by collusion of two or more people, or by management override of the control. In addition, over
time, controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or the degree of compliance with the policies
or procedures may deteriorate. Because of these and other inherent limitations of control systems, there can be no
assurance that any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions, regardless of
how remote.
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PART II OTHER INFORMATION
ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Commencing on August 11, 2005, Abbott Diabetes Care, Inc. (“Abbott”) instituted various patent infringement
proceedings against us in the United States District Court for the District of Delaware. In these proceedings Abbott
sought, amongst other thing, a declaratory judgment that our continuous glucose monitoring systems infringe certain
patents held by Abbott. On July 2, 2014, we entered into a Settlement and License Agreement (the “Abbott Settlement
Agreement”) with Abbott (Abbott and us together, the “settlement parties” and each, a “settlement party”). The Abbott
Settlement Agreement was entered into in full settlement of all pending patent infringement legal proceedings brought
by Abbott against us. In accordance with the Abbott Settlement Agreement, the parties filed a joint stipulation of
dismissal of all pending legal proceedings, which dismal was granted on July 11, 2014.

The Abbott Settlement Agreement does not obligate us to pay any royalties or any other form of financial
compensation. The Abbott Settlement Agreement provides for a royalty-free, worldwide, non-exclusive,
non-sublicensable cross-license of certain patents. We receive a limited license from Abbott to the patents that Abbott
has alleged that we infringed (and other Abbott patents that claim priority to such patents). We grant to Abbott a
limited license of certain patents with an actual filing date prior to January 1, 2005 (and other of our patents that claim
priority to such patents). In addition, each settlement party agrees not to (1) sue the other settlement party for patent
infringement based on certain of their respective continuous glucose monitoring products, and (2) challenge any
patent or patent application held by the other settlement party, subject to certain limited exceptions, in each case, until
March 31, 2021. The cross-license and mutual covenant not to sue granted to each settlement party do not apply to the
type of sensor technology used by the other settlement party.

In the event of a change of control, the settlement party that is not acquired in the change of control (the
“Non-Acquired Party”) shall be paid a one-time continuation fee of $25 million. If the Non-Acquired Party is not paid
the continuation fee within 30 days after the effective date of such change of control, then the license granted by, and
all covenants of, the Non-Acquired Party shall expire 30 days after the effective date of the change of control, but the
license granted by, and all covenants of, the settlement party that is acquired shall survive such expiration.

We are subject to additional various claims, complaints and legal actions that arise from time to time in the normal
course of business. In addition, from time to time, we may bring claims or initiate lawsuits against various third
parties with respect to matters arising out of the ordinary course of our business, including commercial and
employment related matters. Other than as described above, we do not believe we are party to any currently pending
legal proceedings, the outcome of which could have a material adverse effect on our operations or financial position.
There can be no assurance that existing or future legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business or
otherwise will not have a material adverse effect on our business, consolidated financial position, results of operations
or cash flows.

ITEM 1A.RISK FACTORS

Factors that May Affect our Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Risks Related to Our Business

We have a limited operating history and our products may never achieve market acceptance.

We expect that sales of our G4 PLATINUM system which consists of a handheld receiver, reusable transmitter and
disposable sensor, will account for substantially all of our product revenue for the foreseeable future. We have
relatively limited experience in selling our products and we might be unable to successfully expand the
commercialization of our products on a wide scale for a number of reasons, including:

the approval to sell our G4 system in the European Union, Australia, New Zealand, and the countries in Asia and

L atin America that recognize our CE Mark in June 2012 and approval for our G4 PLATINUM system in the United
States in October 2012 means that we have limited experience selling our new G4 system;

the recent approval for a Pediatric Indication of our G4 PLATINUM system in the United States, Canada, European
Union, Australia, New Zealand and the countries in Asia and Latin America that recognize our CE Mark means that
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we have limited experience selling and marketing the G4 PLATINUM system to persons aged two to 17 years or their
legal guardians;

the recent approval for a Professional Use Indication of our G4 PLATINUM system in the United States means that
we have limited experience selling and marketing the G4 PLATINUM system to healthcare professionals;
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widespread market acceptance of our products by physicians and people with diabetes will largely depend on our
ability to demonstrate their relative safety, efficacy, reliability, cost-effectiveness and ease of use;

the limited size of our sales force and our relative inexperience in marketing, selling and distributing our products;
we may not have sufficient financial or other resources to adequately expand the commercialization efforts for our
products;

our FDA and other regulatory submissions may be delayed, or approved with limited product labeling;

we may not be able to manufacture our products in commercial quantities or at an acceptable cost;

people with diabetes do not generally receive broad reimbursement from third-party payors for their purchase of our
products since many payors require that a policy holder meet specific medical criteria to qualify for reimbursement,
which may reduce widespread use of our products;

the uncertainties associated with establishing and qualifying new manufacturing facilities;

our systems are not labeled as a replacement for the information that is obtained from single-point finger stick
devices;

people with diabetes will need to incur the costs of our systems in addition to single-point finger stick devices;

the relative immaturity of the continuous glucose monitoring market internationally, and the general absence of
tnternational reimbursement of continuous glucose monitoring devices by third-party payors and government
healthcare providers outside the United States;

the introduction and market acceptance of competing products and technologies;

our inability to obtain sufficient quantities of supplies at appropriate quality levels from our single-source and other
key suppliers;

our inability to manufacture products that perform in accordance with expectations of consumers; and

rapid technological change may make our technology and our products obsolete.

Our G4 PLATINUM system is more invasive than current self-monitored glucose testing systems, including
single-point finger stick devices, and people with diabetes may be unwilling to insert a sensor in their body, especially
if their current diabetes management involves no more than two finger sticks per day. Moreover, people with diabetes
may not perceive the benefits of continuous glucose monitoring and may be unwilling to change their current
treatment regimens. In addition, physicians tend to be slow to change their medical treatment practices because of
perceived liability risks arising from the use of new products. Physicians may not recommend or prescribe our
products until (i) there is more long-term clinical evidence to convince them to alter their existing treatment methods,
(ii) there are additional recommendations from prominent physicians that our products are effective in monitoring
glucose levels and (iii) reimbursement or insurance coverage is more widely available. We cannot predict when, if
ever, physicians and people with diabetes may adopt more widespread use of continuous glucose monitoring systems,
including the G4 PLATINUM system. If the G4 PLATINUM system does not achieve an adequate level of
acceptance by people with diabetes, physicians and healthcare payors, we may not generate significant product
revenue and we may not become profitable.

We have incurred losses since inception and anticipate that we will incur continued losses in the future.

We have incurred net losses in each year since our inception in May 1999, including a net loss of $23.7 million for the
nine months ended September 30, 2014. As of September 30, 2014, we had an accumulated deficit of $499.1 million.
We have financed our operations primarily through private and public offerings of equity securities and debt, and the
sales of our products, and have devoted a substantial portion of our resources to research and development relating to
our continuous glucose monitoring systems, including our in-hospital product development, and more recently, we
have incurred significant sales and marketing and manufacturing expenses associated with the commercialization of
the G4 PLATINUM system. In addition, we expect our research and development expenses to increase in connection
with our clinical trials and other development activities related to our products, including our next generation sensor,
and sensor augmented insulin pump collaborations. We also expect that our general and administrative expenses will
continue to increase due to the additional operational and regulatory burdens applicable to public healthcare and
medical device companies. As a result, we expect to continue to incur operating losses in the future. These losses,
among other things, have had and will continue to have an adverse effect on our stockholders' equity.
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Current uncertainty in global economic and political conditions makes it particularly difficult to predict product
demand and other related matters and makes it more likely that our actual results could differ materially from
expectations.

Our operations and performance depend on worldwide economic and political conditions, which have been adversely
impacted by continued global economic uncertainty, political instability and military hostilities in multiple
geographies, concerns over the downgrade of U.S. sovereign debt and continued sovereign debt, monetary and
financial uncertainties in Europe and other foreign countries. These conditions have and may continue to make it
difficult for our customers and potential customers to afford our products, and could cause our customers to stop using
our products or to use them less frequently. If that were to occur, we would experience a decrease in revenue and our
performance would be negatively impacted. In addition, the pressure on consumers to absorb more of their own health
care costs has resulted in some cases in higher deductibles and limits on durable medical equipment, which may cause
seasonality in purchasing patterns. Furthermore, during economic uncertainty, our customers have experienced job
losses and may continue to experience issues gaining timely access to sufficient health insurance or credit, which
could result in their unwillingness to purchase products or an impairment of their ability to make timely payments to
us. We cannot predict the reoccurrence of any economic slowdown or the strength or sustainability of the economic
recovery, worldwide, in the United States, or in our industry. These and other economic factors could have a material
adverse effect on our financial condition and operating results.

We may require additional funding to continue the commercialization of our G4 PLATINUM systems or the
development and commercialization of our future generation and other continuous glucose monitoring systems,
including our sensor augmented insulin pump systems developed in collaboration with Animas and Tandem.

Our operations have consumed substantial amounts of cash since inception. We expect to continue to spend
substantial amounts on commercializing our products, including growth of our manufacturing capacity, and on
research and development, including conducting clinical trials for our next generation ambulatory continuous glucose
monitoring sensors and systems. For the nine months ended September 30, 2014, we generated $15.2 million in net
cash from operating activities, compared to $2.0 million used for the same period in 2013, and as of September 30,
2014, we had working capital of $82.8 million which included $74.9 million in cash, cash equivalents and short-term
marketable securities, and excluded $1.0 million in restricted cash. We expect that our cash generated by operations
will increase in each of the next several years, and, although (1) we have the ability to borrow up to an additional
$15.0 million pursuant to the Loan Agreement we entered into with Silicon Valley Bank and Oxford Finance in
November 2012, and (2) we were awarded a $4.0 million grant from the Helmsley Trust in July 2013, we may need
additional funds to continue the commercialization of our products and for the development and commercialization of
our next generation sensors and systems. Additional financing may not be available on a timely basis on terms
acceptable to us, or at all. Any additional financing may be dilutive to stockholders or may require us to grant a lender
a security interest in our assets. The amount of funding we may need will depend on many factors, including:

the revenue generated by sales of our products and other future products;

the costs, timing and risks of delay of additional regulatory approvals;

the expenses we incur in manufacturing, developing, selling and marketing our products;

our ability to scale our manufacturing operations to meet demand for our current and any future products;

the costs to produce our continuous glucose monitoring systems;

the costs of filing, prosecuting, defending and enforcing any patent claims and other intellectual property rights;

the rate of progress and cost of our clinical trials and other development activities;

the success of our research and development efforts;

the emergence of competing or complementary technological developments;

the terms and timing of any collaborative, licensing and other arrangements that we may establish; and

the acquisition of businesses, products and technologies, although we currently have no commitments or agreements
relating to any of these types of transactions.

If adequate funds are not available, we may not be able to commercialize our products at the rate we desire and we
may have to delay development or commercialization of our other products or license to third parties the rights to
commercialize products or technologies that we would otherwise seek to commercialize. We also may have to reduce
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sales, marketing, customer support or other resources devoted to our products. Any of these factors could harm our
financial condition.
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We may face risks associated with acquisitions of companies, products and technologies and our business could be
harmed if we are unable to address these risks.

If we are presented with appropriate opportunities, we intend to acquire or make other investments in complementary
companies, products or technologies. In March 2012, we acquired SweetSpot, our only acquisition to date. We may
not realize the anticipated benefit of the acquisition of SweetSpot or any future acquisition, or the realization of the
anticipated benefits may require greater expenditures than anticipated by us. We will likely face risks, uncertainties
and disruptions associated with the integration process, including difficulties in the integration of the operations and
services of any acquired company, integration of acquired technology with our products, diversion of our
management's attention from other business concerns, the potential loss of key employees or customers of the
acquired businesses and impairment charges if future acquisitions are not as successful as we originally anticipate. If
we fail to successfully integrate other companies, products or technologies that we acquire, our business could be
harmed. Furthermore, we may have to incur debt or issue equity securities to pay for any additional future acquisitions
or investments, the issuance of which could be dilutive to our existing shareholders. In addition, our operating results
may suffer because of acquisition-related costs or amortization expenses or charges relating to acquired intangible
assets.

If we are unable to continue the development of an adequate sales and marketing organization, or if our direct sales
organization is not successful, we may have difficulty achieving market awareness and selling our products.

To achieve commercial success for the G4 PLATINUM system and our future products, we must continue to develop
and grow our sales and marketing organization and enter into partnerships or other arrangements to market and sell
our products. We currently employ a small direct sales force to market our products in the United States. In the United
States, our sales force calls directly on healthcare providers and people with diabetes throughout the country to initiate
sales of our products. Our sales organization competes with the experienced, larger and well-funded marketing and
sales operations of our competitors. We may not be able to successfully manage our dispersed sales force, or increase
our product sales in the new territories. We have also entered into distribution arrangements to leverage existing
distributors already engaged in the diabetes marketplace. Our U.S. distribution partnerships are focused on accessing
underrepresented regions and, in some instances, third-party payors that contract exclusively with distributors. Our
European and other international distribution partners call directly on healthcare providers to market and sell our
products in Europe, Australia, New Zealand, Asia, the Middle East and Latin America. Because of the competition for
their services, we may be unable to partner with or retain additional qualified distributors. Further, we may not be able
to enter into agreements with distributors on commercially reasonable terms, if at all.

Additionally, to aid our efforts to obtain timely and comprehensive reimbursement of our products for our customers,
we must continue to improve our customer service processes and scale our information technology systems.
Developing and managing a direct sales organization is a difficult, expensive and time consuming process. To be
successful we must:

recruit and retain adequate numbers of effective and experienced sales personnel;

effectively train our sales personnel in the benefits and risks of our products;

establish and maintain successful sales, marketing and education programs that educate endocrinologists, physicians
and diabetes educators so they can appropriately inform their patients about our products; and

manage geographically disbursed sales and marketing operations.

If we are unable to establish adequate sales, marketing and distribution capabilities or enter into and maintain
arrangements with third parties to sell, market and distribute our products, our business may be harmed.

We have entered into distribution arrangements to leverage established distributors already engaged in the diabetes
marketplace. We have entered into distribution agreements with Byram and Edgepark (and their affiliates), pursuant to
which we generated approximately 18% and 11%, respectively, of our total revenue during the nine months ended
September 30, 2014. There can be no assurances that these relationships will continue or that we will be able to
maintain this volume of sales from these relationships in the future. A substantial decrease or loss of these sales could
have a material adverse effect on our operating performance. Additionally, to the extent that we enter into additional
arrangements with third parties to perform sales, marketing, distribution and billing services in the United States,
Europe or other countries, our product margins could be lower than if we directly marketed and sold our products.
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Furthermore, to the extent that we enter into co-promotion or other marketing and sales arrangements with other
companies, any revenue received will depend on the skills and efforts of others, and we cannot predict whether these
efforts will be successful. In addition, market acceptance of our products by physicians and people with diabetes in
Europe or other countries will largely depend on our ability to demonstrate their relative safety, efficacy, reliability,
cost-effectiveness and ease of use. If we are unable to do so, we may not be able to generate product revenue from our
sales efforts in Europe or other countries. Finally, if we are unable to establish and maintain adequate sales,
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marketing and distribution capabilities, independently or with others, we may not be able to generate adequate product
revenue and may not become profitable.

Although many third-party payors have adopted some form of coverage policy on continuous glucose monitoring
devices, our products do not yet have broad-based contractual coverage with third-party payors and we frequently
experience administrative challenges in obtaining reimbursement for our customers. If we are unable to obtain
adequately broad reimbursement at acceptable prices for our products or any future products from third-party payors,
we will be unable to generate significant revenue.

As a medical device company, reimbursement from Medicare and private third-party healthcare payors is an important
element of our success. Although the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (“CMS”) in 2008 released
Alpha-Numeric Healthcare Common Procedure Coding System (“HCPCS”) codes applicable to each of the three
components of our continuous glucose monitoring systems, to date, our approved products are not reimbursed by
virtue of a national coverage decision by Medicare. It is not known when, if ever, Medicare will adopt a national
coverage decision with respect to continuous glucose monitoring devices. Until any such coverage decision is adopted
by Medicare, reimbursement of our products will generally be limited to those people with diabetes covered by
third-party payors that have adopted policies for continuous glucose monitoring devices allowing for coverage of
these devices if certain conditions are met. As of November 6, 2014, the seven largest private third-party payors, in
terms of the number of covered lives, have issued coverage policies for the category of continuous glucose monitoring
devices. In addition, we have negotiated contracted rates with six of those third-party payors for the purchase of our
products by their members. However, people with diabetes without insurance that covers our products will have to
bear the financial cost of them. In the United States, people with diabetes using existing single-point finger stick
devices are generally reimbursed all or part of the product cost by Medicare or other third-party payors. The
commercial success of our products in both domestic and international markets will be substantially dependent on
whether third-party reimbursement is widely available for individuals that use them. While many third-party payors
have adopted some form of coverage policy on continuous glucose monitoring devices, those coverage policies
frequently require significant medical documentation in order for policy holders to obtain reimbursement, and as a
result, we have experienced difficulty in improving the efficiency of our customer service group. In addition,
Medicare, Medicaid, health maintenance organizations and other third-party payors are increasingly attempting to
contain healthcare costs by limiting both coverage and the level of reimbursement of new medical devices, and, as a
result, they may not cover or provide adequate payment for our products. In order to obtain additional reimbursement
arrangements, we may have to agree to a net sales price lower than the net sales price we might charge in other sales
channels. Our revenue may be limited by the continuing efforts of government and third-party payors to contain or
reduce the costs of healthcare through various increasingly sophisticated means, such as requiring prospective
reimbursement and second opinions, purchasing in groups, or redesigning benefits. Furthermore, we are unable to
predict what effect the current or any future healthcare reform will have on our business, or the effect these matters
will have on our customers. Our initial dependence on the commercial success of the G4 PLATINUM system makes
us particularly susceptible to any cost containment or reduction efforts. Accordingly, unless government and other
third-party payors provide adequate coverage and reimbursement for the G4 PLATINUM system, people without
coverage who have diabetes may not use our products.

In some foreign markets, pricing and profitability of medical devices are subject to government control. In the United
States, we expect that there will continue to be federal and state proposals for similar controls. Also, the trends toward
managed healthcare in the United States and proposed legislation intended to reduce the cost of government insurance
programs could significantly influence the purchase of healthcare services and products and may result in lower prices
for our products or the exclusion of our products from reimbursement programs.

We may never receive approval or clearance from the FDA and other governmental agencies to market our next
generation ambulatory system, expanded indications for use of current and future generation ambulatory systems, and
SweetSpot software platforms or the GlucoClear system, our blood-based in-vivo automated glucose monitoring
system, or any other continuous glucose monitoring system under development.

Our SEVEN PLUS and G4 PLATINUM systems are classified by the FDA as premarket approval (“PMA”) medical
devices. The PMA process requires us to prove the safety and efficacy of our ambulatory system to the FDA's
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satisfaction. This process can be expensive, prolonged and uncertain, requires detailed and comprehensive scientific
and human clinical data, and may never result in the FDA granting a PMA. Any future general ambulatory system or
expanded indications for use of current and future generation ambulatory systems will require approval of the
applicable regulatory authorities.

Animas has submitted an application to the FDA seeking approval of the VIBE system, and Tandem has also
submitted its PMA seeking approval for Tandem's sensor augmented insulin delivery system. We cannot predict
when, if ever, those products will be approved in the United States. We intend to seek either 510(k) clearances or
PMA approvals for certain
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changes and modifications to SweetSpot's existing software platform, but cannot predict when, if ever, those changes
and modifications will be approved.

In addition, we have completed the development of the second generation GlucoClear product with Edwards. There
are no current commercial activities led by Edwards to continue the commercialization of the GlucoClear system,
however, Edwards may continue to develop regulatory pathways for the system. The 510(k) process would require us
to establish (including through pre-clinical testing, bench testing, and/or potentially clinical data) that the GlucoClear
system is substantially equivalent in terms of indication, technological characteristics, and performance to one or more
legally marketed devices eligible to be cited as predicates in the 510(k) process. We cannot predict whether the FDA
will classify the GlucoClear as a 510(k) product, nor can we predict when, if ever, the GlucoClear system will obtain
FDA clearance or approval.

The FDA can refuse to grant the GlucoClear system 510(k) clearance or delay, limit or deny approval of a PMA
application or supplement for many reasons, including:

the system may not be deemed by the FDA to be substantially equivalent to appropriate predicate devices;

the system may not satisfy the FDA's safety or efficacy requirements;

the data from pre-clinical studies and clinical trials may be insufficient to support approval;

the manufacturing process or facilities used may not meet applicable requirements; and

changes in FDA approval policies or adoption of new regulations may require additional data.

Even if approved or cleared by the FDA, future generations of our ambulatory system, expanded indications for use of
current and future generation ambulatory systems, SweetSpot, the GlucoClear system, or any other continuous glucose
monitoring system under development, may not be approved or cleared for the indications that are necessary or
desirable for successful commercialization. We may not obtain the necessary regulatory approvals or clearances to
market these continuous glucose monitoring systems in the United States or outside of the United States. Any delay
in, or failure to receive or maintain, approval or clearance for the next generation of our ambulatory system or the
GlucoClear system, could prevent us from generating revenue from these products or achieving profitability. The
uncertain timing of regulatory approvals for future generations of our ambulatory products could subject our current
inventory to excess or obsolescence charges, which could have an adverse effect on our operating results.

If we are unable to successfully complete the pre-clinical studies or clinical trials necessary to support additional
PMA or 510(k) applications or supplements, we may be unable to commercialize our continuous glucose monitoring
systems under development, including future generations of our ambulatory system, ambulatory systems with
expanded indications for use, the GlucoClear system or our systems developed in collaboration with Animas and
Tandem, which could impair our financial position.

Animas has submitted an application to the FDA seeking approval of the VIBE system, and Tandem has also
submitted its PMA seeking approval for Tandem's sensor augmented insulin delivery system. In addition, Edwards
may continue to develop regulatory pathways for the GlucoClear system. The GlucoClear system may ultimately be
classified by the FDA as either a 510(k) or PMA product, and we may consequently be requested to provide additional
data in support of any GlucoClear application.

To support these and any future additional PMA or 510(k) applications or supplements, we together with our partners,
must successfully complete pre-clinical studies, bench-testing, and clinical trials that will demonstrate that the product
is safe and effective. Product development, including pre-clinical studies and clinical trials, is a long, expensive and
uncertain process and is subject to delays and failure at any stage. Furthermore, the data obtained from the studies and
trials may be inadequate to support approval of a PMA or 510(k) application and the FDA may request additional
clinical data in support of those applications, which may result in significant additional clinical expenses and may
delay product approvals. While we have in the past obtained, and may in the future obtain, an Investigational Device
Exemption (“IDE”) prior to commencing clinical trials for our continuous glucose monitoring systems, FDA approval of
an IDE application permitting us to conduct testing does not mean that the FDA will consider the data gathered in the
trial to be sufficient to support approval of a PMA or 510(k) application or supplement, even if the trial's intended
safety and efficacy endpoints are achieved. Additionally, since 2009, the FDA has significantly increased the scrutiny
applied to its oversight of companies subject to its regulations, including 510(k) and PMA submissions, by hiring new
investigators and increasing the frequency and scope of its inspections of manufacturing facilities. The FDA's Center

57



Edgar Filing: DEXCOM INC - Form 10-Q

for Devices and Radiological Health (“CDRH”) is contemplating significant changes to the 510(k) process, which could
complicate the product approval process for certain of our and our partner’s products, although we cannot predict the
effect of such procedural changes and cannot ascertain if such changes will have a substantive impact on the approval
of our products or our partners’ products. If we fail to adequately respond to any changes to the 510(k) submission
process and associated matters, our business may be adversely impacted.
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Unexpected changes to the FDA or foreign regulatory approval processes could also delay or prevent the approval of
our products submitted for review. The data contained in our submission, including data drawn from our clinical trials,
may not be sufficient to support approval of our products or additional or expanded indications. Medical device
company stock prices have declined significantly in certain circumstances where companies have failed to meet
expectations in regards to the timing of regulatory approval. If the FDA's response causes product approval delays, or
is not favorable for any of our products, our stock price could decline substantially.

The commencement or completion of any of our clinical trials may be delayed or halted, or be inadequate to support
approval of a PMA or 510(k) application or supplement, for numerous reasons, including, but not limited to, the
following:

the FDA or other regulatory authorities do not approve a clinical trial protocol or a clinical trial, or place a clinical
trial on hold;

patients do not enroll in clinical trials at the rate we expect;

patients do not comply with trial protocols;

patient follow-up does not occur at the rate we expect;

patients experience adverse side effects;

patients die during a clinical trial, even though their death may not be related to our products;

tnstitutional review boards (“IRBs”) and third-party clinical investigators may delay or reject our trial protocol;
third-party clinical investigators decline to participate in a trial or do not perform a trial on our anticipated schedule or
consistent with the investigator agreements, clinical trial protocol, good clinical practices or other FDA or IRB
requirements;

the company or third-party organizations do not perform data collection, monitoring and analysis in a timely or
accurate manner or consistent with the clinical trial protocol or investigational or statistical plans;

third-party clinical investigators have significant financial interests related to the company or study that FDA deems
to make the study results unreliable, or the company or investigators fail to disclose such interests;

regulatory inspections of our clinical trials or manufacturing facilities may, among other things, require us to
undertake corrective action or suspend or terminate our clinical trials;

changes in governmental regulations, policies or administrative actions applicable to our trial protocols;

the interim or final results of the clinical trial are inconclusive or unfavorable as to safety or efficacy; and

the FDA concludes that our trial design is inadequate to demonstrate safety and efficacy.

The results of pre-clinical studies do not necessarily predict future clinical trial results, and prior clinical trial results
might not be repeated in subsequent clinical trials. Additionally, the FDA may disagree with our interpretation of the
data from our pre-clinical studies and clinical trials, or may find the clinical trial design, conduct or results inadequate
to prove safety or efficacy, and may require us to pursue additional pre-clinical studies or clinical trials, which could
further delay the approval of our products. If we are unable to demonstrate the safety and efficacy of our products in
our clinical trials to the FDA's satisfaction, we will be unable to obtain regulatory approval to market our products in
the United States. In addition, the data we collect from our current clinical trials, our pre-clinical studies and other
clinical trials may not be sufficient to support FDA approval, even if our endpoints are met.

We may also conduct clinical studies to demonstrate the relative or comparative effectiveness of continuous glucose
monitoring devices for the treatment of diabetes. These types of studies, which often require substantial investment
and effort, may not show adequate, or any, clinical benefit for the use of continuous glucose monitoring devices.

We depend on clinical investigators and clinical sites to enroll patients in our clinical trials and other third parties to
manage the trials and to perform related data collection and analysis, and, as a result, we may face costs and delays
that are outside of our control.

We rely on clinical investigators and clinical sites to enroll patients in our clinical trials and other third parties to
manage the trial and to perform related data collection and analysis. However, we may not be able to control the
amount and timing of resources that clinical sites may devote to our clinical trials. If these clinical investigators and
clinical sites fail to enroll a sufficient number of patients in our clinical trials or fail to ensure compliance by patients
with clinical protocols or fail to comply with regulatory requirements, we will be unable to complete these trials,
which could prevent us from obtaining regulatory approvals for our products. Our agreements with clinical
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investigators and clinical sites for clinical testing place substantial responsibilities on these parties and, if these parties
fail to perform as expected, our trials could be delayed or
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terminated. If these clinical investigators, clinical sites or other third parties do not carry out their contractual duties or
obligations or fail to meet expected deadlines, or if the quality or accuracy of the clinical data they obtain is
compromised due to their failure to adhere to our clinical protocols, regulatory requirements or for other reasons, our
clinical trials may be extended, delayed or terminated, or the clinical data may be rejected by the FDA, and we may be
unable to obtain regulatory approval for, or successfully commercialize, our products.

Healthcare reforms, changes in healthcare policies and changes to third-party reimbursements for our products may
affect demand for our products.

Comprehensive healthcare legislation, signed into law in March 2010, imposes stringent compliance, recordkeeping,
and reporting requirements on companies in various sectors of the life sciences industry, with which we may need to
comply, and enhanced penalties for non-compliance with the new healthcare regulations. The impact of this
legislation remains unclear, and costs of compliance with this legislation, or any future amendments thereto, could
result in certain risks and expenses that we may have to assume.

Other political and regulatory influences are also subjecting our industry to significant changes, and we cannot predict
whether new regulations will emerge at the federal or state level, or abroad. The U.S. government may in the future
consider healthcare policies and proposals intended to curb rising healthcare costs, including those that could
significantly affect reimbursement for healthcare products such as the G4 PLATINUM system. These policies have
included, and may in the future include: basing reimbursement policies and rates on clinical outcomes, the
comparative effectiveness and costs of different treatment technologies and modalities; imposing price controls and
taxes on medical device providers; and other measures. Future significant changes in the healthcare systems in the
United States or elsewhere could also have a negative impact on the demand for our current and future products.
These include changes that may reduce reimbursement rates for our products and changes that may be proposed or
implemented by the current or future U.S. Presidential administration or Congress.

In addition, the comprehensive healthcare reform legislation included an annual excise tax on the sale of medical
devices equal to 2.3% of the price of the device starting on January 1, 2013, which does not include, under Internal
Revenue Service (“IRS”) guidance, our existing SEVEN PLUS and G4 PLATINUM systems as they are deemed to be
retail medical devices under such legislation. As a result, as of September 30, 2014, we believed that our current
ambulatory products were exempt from the excise tax. We are currently evaluating whether our G4 PLATINUM
Professional system is subject to the excise tax. If our G4 PLATINUM Professional system is deemed to be subject to
the excise tax, the current tax liability is immaterial, but may become material in the future. Notwithstanding our
belief, if the IRS were to determine that this tax is applicable to any of our current or future products, our future
operating results could be harmed, which in turn could cause the price of our stock to decline, Additionally, because
of the uncertainty surrounding these issues, the impact of this tax has not been reflected in our forward guidance.

We conduct business in a heavily regulated industry and if we fail to comply with these laws and government
regulations, we could suffer penalties or be required to make significant changes to our operations.

The healthcare industry is subject to extensive foreign, federal, state and local laws and regulations, including those
relating to:

billing for services;

financial relationships with physicians and other referral sources;

tnducements and courtesies given to physicians and other health care providers and patients;

{abeling products;

quality of medical equipment and services;

confidentiality, maintenance and security issues associated with medical records and individually identifiable health
and other personal information;

medical device reporting;

anti-kickback:

any scheme to defraud any healthcare benefit program;

physician payment disclosure requirements;

€alse claims; and

professional licensure.
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These laws and regulations are extremely complex and, in some cases, still evolving. In many instances, the industry
does not have the benefit of significant regulatory or judicial interpretation of these laws and regulations. If our
operations are found
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to be in violation of any of the federal, state or local laws and regulations which govern our activities, we may be
subject to the applicable penalty associated with the violation, including civil and criminal penalties, damages, fines or
curtailment of our operations. The risk of being found in violation of these laws and regulations is increased by the
fact that many of them have not been fully interpreted by the regulatory authorities or the courts, and their provisions
are open to a variety of interpretations. Any action against us for violation of these laws or regulations, even if we
successfully defend against it, could cause us to incur significant legal expenses and divert our management's time and
attention from the operation of our business.

The FDA, the Office of Inspector General for the Department of Health and Human Services, the Department of
Justice, states' attorneys general and other governmental authorities actively enforce the laws and regulations
discussed above. In the U.S., medical device manufacturers have been the target of numerous government
prosecutions and investigations alleging violations of law, including claims asserting impermissible off-label
promotion of pharmaceutical products, payments intended to influence the referral of federal or state healthcare
business, and submission of false claims for government reimbursement. As part of our compliance program, we have
reviewed our sales contracts and marketing materials and practices to assure compliance with these federal and state
laws, and inform employees and marketing representatives of the anti-kickback statute and their obligations
thereunder. However, we cannot rule out the possibility that the government or other third parties could interpret these
laws differently and challenge our practices under one or more of these laws.

In addition, healthcare laws and regulations may change significantly in the future. Any new healthcare laws or
regulations may adversely affect our business. A review of our business by courts or regulatory authorities may result
in a determination that could adversely affect our operations. Also, the healthcare regulatory environment may change
in a way that restricts or adversely impacts our operations.

We are not aware of any governmental healthcare investigations involving our executives or us. However, any future
healthcare investigations of our executives, our managers or us could result in significant liabilities or penalties to us,
as well as adverse publicity.

We have limited manufacturing capabilities and manufacturing personnel, and if our manufacturing capabilities are
insufficient to produce an adequate supply of product at appropriate quality levels, our growth could be limited and
our business could be harmed.

We currently have limited resources, facilities and experience in commercially manufacturing sufficient quantities of
product to meet expected demand. In the past, we have had difficulty scaling our manufacturing operations to provide
a sufficient supply of product to